ATTACHMENT 1

nationalgrid

INVOICE

National Grid

Miscellaneous Billing Department

300 Erie Blvd. West Syracuse NY 13202

(315) 428-3110

Page:

00041-002161

Invoice No: Invoice Date:

04/21/2010

Customer Number:

100108912

Payment Terms:

Net 30

Due Date:

05/21/2010

Sales Order #: Cust. PO#/Ref.:

0007577040

96 AVENUE B WILLISTON VT 05495

Line

1

ATTN: NATALIE GORDON

Description Quantity UOM

This is a proposal for Make Ready Work only. The estimated cost for the Make

Ready Work is valid if the Make Ready Work is paid for within 90 days of the

date of this proposal.

COMCAST COMMUNICATIONS INC.

COMCAST APPL 166324-LEB

SUBTOTAL:

1.00

ОТ

32,773.56

Unit Amt

32,773.56

Net Amount:

MAKE READY ESTIMATE - COMCAST - POVERTY LN, LEBANON, NH

32,773.56

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:

32,773.56

Finance charges will accrue if payment is not received by the indicated due date.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN THIS STUB IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED

Make checks payable to National Grid

Invoice No:

00041-002161

Invoice Date:

04/21/2010

Customer Number: Due Date: 100108912 05/21/2010

Due

Mail Payment To:

AMOUNT DUE:

32,773.56

National Grid P.O. Box 81046 Woburn MA 01813-1046

Enclosed:

Original

STD-FORM

FORM NO. NG0010(12.03)

Agreement Number 9708
National Grid Permit Number 751-252

Form B - 2 (rev.1)

MAKE-READY WORK ESTIMATE

1000124	m 78 . St.	35%	90	1	5	3
CA	1000	1	8	240	šī.	
100	86 W	36	141-	-		

Programme and the second secon
COMCAST
(Licensee)
Field survey work associated with your Application/Request Number 166324-LEB , for attachment to poles has been completed. The following is a summary of charges which will apply to complete Make-Ready work.
TOTAL MAKE-READY CHARGES \$32,773.56
Attached is an itemized description (Form C-1) and estimate of required make-ready work. If you wish to complete the required make-ready work, please sign the authorization section below and return this form to: CHA National Grid Telecommunications Attachment Group ATTN: Cheryl Howe III Winners Circle Albany, NY 12205-0269
Invoice # 00041-002161 will be sent under a separate mailing for the above amount. Please submit payment to the address shown on the invoice.
Licensor National Grid Date: April 21, 2010 By Cheryl Howe
Signature Cheryl L. Howe
Title Telecommunications Attachment Coordinator
Phone Number 518-453-8776
AUTHORIZATION FOR MAKE-READY WORK
The required make ready work order #0007577040 associated with Application/Request Number 166324-LEB is authorized and the costs therefore will be paid to Licensor in accordance with Appendix I to License Agreement.
Date
Licensee
By (Print Name)
Signature
Title
Phone Number

1.) The required make-ready work identified above involves one or more National Grid customer electric service interruptions.

2.) All associated National Grid costs, including customer electric service interruption costs are included in the above Total Cost.

1. All associated National Grid costs, including customer electric service interruption costs are not included in the above Total Cost. In the observation of the above Total Cost, including customer electric service interruption costs are not included in the above Total Cost, then the customer will be invoiced separately or by separate involce line them for all additional costs required to perform such work, including but not limited to work performed outside the normal workweek or standard work nours, materials, and equipment not included in the Total Cost above.

					1	-							
Licens	ee Contac	Licensee Contact Information					Form C-1	য়					
Name: Tel No:	Natalie Gordon 802-846-2410	ordon !410					national grid	olgri	T				
Cell No: Fax No:	1 1	1424				Applic	Application - Wired Attachment Sheet for Distribution Poles	tachment Sheet on Poles					
E-Mail:	natalie oc	-Mail: natale gordon@cable.comca:	final		_	Type of Licensee:		CATVCLEC_X_	ОТНЕК				
Loles	LEBANON, NH	ON, NH				Date Propared:			Licensee Agreement No:	ant No:			
	166324-LEB	4-LEB				#OM	7577040		Sheet 1 of 4				
	Pole No.	Street	Description of Work	Pole	≥ ;	Secondary	Clearance to	Space Needed	New Comm		CATV	Top	Top Telco
Well .	95	Poverty Ln	and raise soundary	926	NIZ8	Height	lop Comm	to Attach	Attachment	Exist Hght	Adjustment	Exist Hght	Adjustment
	/94	(0189)	call included y	40/40	70",	70 10	444	поле	22.4			21.4	
24	96 96	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary riser leads should be OK Raise secondary 10"	40/40	7.62	29'	62"	30"	24'8			25' 4	lower to 23' 8
ဧ	95/ 96/	Poverty Ln (0189)	Transfer 2PH dbl xrm, secondary + guy NGRID set 45/40 class 2 pole	40/40	7.62	NH= 82"	.02	new pole	25' 10 new pole			24' 10 new pole	
4	98 /6/	Poverty ∟n (0189)	Transfer 2PH dbl xrm, secondary + guy Transfer 1PH jctn w/fuse + neutral tap NGRID set 45/40 class 2 pole	40/40	7.62	NH= 82"	70"	new pole	25' 10 new pole			24' 10 new pole	
r)	96/	Poverty Ln (0189)	Transfer 2PH dbl xrm, secondary + guy NGRID set 45/40 class 2 pole	40/40	7.62	NH= 82"	70"	new pole	25' 10 new pole			24' 10 new pole	
ω	198/100 925/99	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	30, 10	.89	12"	25' 2			25'2	lower to 24°2
7	101 9/58	Poverly Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	27.6	68"	26"	21, 10			23'	lower to 20° 10
ω	104 /57	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	29' 10	-199	12"	24'6			24,6	lower to 23' 6
6	105 /56	Poverty Ln (0189)	Transfer ZPH oof xrift, sec + thru sec tap, guy Transfer 1PH thru jch wifuser dbi DE at it + piece-in with the set and the second and the sec	40/40	7.62	NH= 92"	-89	new pole	25' 2 new pole			24' 2 new pole	
10	105/1 56-1	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	35/35	7.62	25' 4	40"	4"	22'			21'4	
÷	105/2 56-2	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	35/35	7.62	23'6	40"	2"	20, 2			19.4	
12	105-3 56-3	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	40	7.62	22'6	40"	none	18' 10			17' 10	
				Licens	e to fill	Licensee to fill out all yellow highlighted sections	ghted sections						

1.) The required make-ready work Identified above involves one or more National Grid customer electric service interruption costs are, included in the above | Total Cost. | Yes | No | If any associated National Grid costs including customer electric service interruption costs are, included in the above | Total Cost. | Yes | No | If any associated National Grid costs, including customer electric service interruption costs are not included in the other customer will be invoiced separately or by separate invoice line item for all additional costs required to perform such work, including but not limited to work performed outside the normal workweek or standard work hours, materials, and equipment not included in the Total Cost above.

						lco	Adjustment	lower 4"	lower drops	lower to 24' 8	lower 4"	16' 8 existing	20' 2 existing	lower to 22' 2	lower to 21'		lower 8"		lower 8"	
						Top Telco	Exist Hght	22' 10	26' 2 drops 25'	25' 8 drop	23' 8 drop	21' 2 new pole	21' 2 new pole	24' drop	21'8	21'	20' 4	23' 4	23' 6	
						САТУ	Adjustment													
				ent No:			Exist Haht													
	70		OTHER	Licensee Agreement No:	Sheet 2 of 4	New Соmm	Attachment	23'6	26,	25' 8	24' 4	22' 2 new pole	22' 2 new pole	23, 2	22,	22'	20'8	24' 4	23' 10	
F	algrid	achm ent Sheet n Pol es	CATVCLEC_X_			Space Needed	to Attach	4"	14'	12"	4"	new pole	new pole	22"	80	попе	16"	12'	*8	
Form C-1	national grid	Application - Wired Attachment Sheet for Distribution Poles			7577040	Clearance to	Top Comm	40"	40"	40"	40"	44'	46"	40"	40"	42"	.09	62"	- "02	thted sections
	Ċ	Applic	Type of Licensee:	Date Propared:	#OM	Secondary	Height	26' 10	29'6	29*	27'8	"86 =NN	96= NH= 96"	26' 6	25' 4	27.	25'2	24' 6	29'8	Licensee to fill out all vellow highlighted sections
			-			≥	Size	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	7.62	e to fill o
						Pole	Size	35/35	40/40	40/40	40/40	36/36	35/35	35/35	35/35	35/35	35/35	45/45	40/40	License
			final			Description of Work		secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	can not raise secondary	can not raise secondary	Transfer 2PH xrm, secondary + sec lap step-down pole needed for new 45ft at p5 NGRID set 40/35 class 3 step-down pole	Transfer 2PH xm., secondary + sec tap Transfer 1PH jch w/fuse + guy NGRID set 40/35 class 3 pole	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	No NGRID Work	Do not charge Comcast Raise secondary + sec tap 8"	raise 1PH transformer 8" Raise secondary + neutral tap 12"	can not raise secondary	
Licensee Contact Information	don 10	24	natelle gordon(@cable.comca.	LEBANON, NH 0	LEB	Street		Poverty Ln (Palo Rd) (0427)	Poverty Ln (Paol Rd) (0427)	Poverty Ln (Paol Rd) (0427)	Poverty Ln (Paol Rd) (0427)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	Poverty Ln (0189)	
Contact	Natalie Gordon 802-846-2410	802-846-2424	atelie dor	NON, NH 0	166324-LEB	Pole No.	Electric	427/1 923/1	2/2	3/3	4/4	106 /55	107 /54	107-1 54/1	107-2 54/2	108 /53	109 /52	110 /51	111	
Licensee	1 1 1		E-Mail:	LEBANON, NH			Item	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	

2.) All associated National Grid customer electric service interruption costs are included in the above Total Cost. | Yes | No by Separate invoice line item for all additional costs, perform such work, including but not limited to work performed outside the normal workweek or standard work hours, materials, and equipment not included in the Total Cost, then the customer will be invoiced separately or materials, and equipment not included in the Total Cost, above.

NOTES:

License	e Contac	Licensee Contact Information					Form C-1	χ					ie
	Natalie Gordon 802-846-2410	ordon 2410					nationalgrid		7				
Cell No: Fax No:	802-846-2424	3424				Appli	Application - Wired Attachment Sheet for Distribution Poles	tachment Sheet on Poles					
1 13	xated in N	reted in Municipality. State	final		·	Type of Licensee:		CATVCLEC_XOTHER	ОТНЕК				
LEBAN	ON, NH	LEBANON, NH 0				Date Prepared:		Idi	Licensee Agreement No:	j	0		
	166324-LEB	4-LEB				#OM	7577040		Sheet 3 of 4				
	Pole No.	Street	Description of Work	Pole	\$	Secondary	Clearance to	Space Needed	New Comm		CATV	Top	Top Telco
Item	Electric			Size	Size	Height	Top Comm	to Attach	Attachment	Exist Haht	Adjustment	Exist Hoht	Adjustment
25	112 /49	Poverty Ln (0189)	Transfer 1PH primary, secondary + neut tap Transfer 1PH jctn w/fuse + down guy NGRID set 40/35 class 3 pole	35/35	7.62	NH= 92"	62"	new pole	21' 2 new pole			20' 2 new pole	19' existing
26	112/1 49/1	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	35/35	7.62	24'	40"	.9	20'8			20°2 drop	lower 6"
27	112-2 NT	Poverty Ln (0189)	secondary is neutral tree wire can not raise secondary	35/35	7.62	24'	40"	попе	20° 8- CATV m	ust use mid-s	20' 8- CATV must use mid-span telco p 48	19' 8 drop	
28	113	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	28' 8	02	none	22' 10- CATV n	ust use mid-	22' 10- CATV must use mid-span talco p 48	21,10	
58	114 /46	Poverty Ln (0169)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	30' 6	54"	Q.	26			25'6	lower to 25'
30	115 /45	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	29, 2	54"	12"	24'8			24' 8 drop 24' 2	lower to 23' 8
31	116 44	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	28′4	48"	12"	24'4			24' 4 drop 23' 6	lower to 23' 2
32	117	Poverty Ln (0189)	can not raise secondary	40/40	7.62	29'	56"	none	24'4			23' 4	
33	118 -	Poverty Ln (0189)	No NGRID Work	40/40	7.62	28,	. 56"	14"	23'4			23'6	lower to 22' 4
34	119 /41	Poverty Ln (0189)	No NGRID Work	40/40	7.62	28'8	56"	none	22'6			21.6	
35	120 /40	Poverly Ln (0189)	Cost Share: NGRID pay sec + sec tap Transfer dbl dead-end In-line triplex/neutral + sec tap NGRID set 40/35 calss 3 pole	35/35	7.62	NH≈ 82"	99	new pole	21' 8 new pole	Ÿ		20' 8 new pole	20' existing
36	121 /40.5	Poverty Ln (0189)	No NGRID Work	35/35	7.62	26'2	40"	попе	22'4			21'4	
				Licens	to fill	Licensee to fill out all yellow highlighted sections	ahted sections						

1.) The required make-ready work identified above involves one or more National Grid customer electric service interruptions.

2.) All associated National Grid costs including customer electric service interruption costs are included in the above Total Cost.

If any associated National Grid costs, including customer electric service interruption costs are included in the above Total Cost, then the customer will be invoiced separately or by separate invoice including customer to be separately or by separate invoice included in the Total Gosts above.

				L									
License	e Contac	Licensee Contact Information					Form C-1	Σ					
Name: Tel No:	Natalie Gordon 802-846-2410	ordon 410				_	national grid	a gri	ס			а	i i¥
Cell No: Fax No:	802-846-2424	424				Appl	Application - Wired Attachment Sheet for Distribution Poles	tachme nt Sheet in Poles	gran				
1 1	natalle qo	natatie gordon@cable.comca	final			Type of Licensee:		CATVCLEC_>	_CLEC_XOTHER				
LEBAN	NON, NH 0	LEBANON, NH 0				Date Prepared:		The Control of the Co	Licensee Agreement No:		0		
	166324-LEB	rLEB				#OM	7577040		Sheet 4 of 4				
	Pole No.	Street Name	Description of Work	Polo	₹	Secondary	Clearance to	Space Needed	New Соmm	Ĺ	CATV	Top	Top Telca
ltem	Electric			Size	Size	Helght	Top Comm	to Attach	Attachment	Exist Hght	Adjustment	Exist Hght	Adjustment
37	122 /40	Poverty Ln (0189)	No NGRID Work	35/35	7.62	23'8	40'	попе	19' 10			18' 10	
38	123 /39-4	Poverty Ln (0189)	No NGRID Work	40/40	7.62	27' 4 low sec	40"	none	24'			23,	
39													
40		-											
14													
42													
43													
44													
45							3						
46							-						
47													
48													
NOTES:				Licen	see to fill	Licensee to fill out all yellow highlighted sections	lighted sections						



Public Service of New Hampshire Construction Services Support Center 60 West Pennacook St Manchester, NH 03105-9989 1-800-362-7764

Rate/Hour

\$234.86

Total

\$ 12,108.14

1,835.17

1,200.00

The Northeast Utilities System

AUTHORIZATION FOR POLE MAKE READY WORK

Licensee: COMCAST:

Make Ready Work:

Labor

Materials

Traffic Control

Field survey work associated with your License Application #NA-11-01 dated 02/23/2011, for 18 attachment(s) to poles has been completed in the municipality of Nashua.

Hours

49 HRS

The following is a summary of the make ready charges which will apply:

	TOTA	L	\$ 15,143.31
Attached is an itemized summary (FormC) complete the required make ready work, ple payment in the amount of \$ 15,143.31			
Licensor:	XI.	Public Service of New	Hampshire
This quote is ONLY VALID	Signature:	Mall G	agne
for 90 Days	Title:	Field Supervisor Desig	n Build
	Address:	60 West Pennacook St PO Box 330 Manchester, NH 03108	(g) 14 ±
s	Tel. Number:	1-800-362-7764	
E	Date:	04/15/2011	
The replacements and rearrangements incluand therefore will be paid to Licensor in accordance.			
2	Signature:		
Date:	Telephone No:	-	



Public Service of New Hampshire 60 West Pennacook St. PO Box 330 Manchester, NH 03105-9989 1-800-362-7764

The Northeast Utilities System

Application #: NA-11-01
Street: Marmon Drive
Town: Nashua
STORMS #: 1675976
Date: 04/15/2011

Dear Comcast:

Public Service of New Hampshire has completed the field survey as described above and has determined there is make ready work necessary.

The requested payment for the make ready work is \$ 15,143.31

By signing below, you hereby authorize Public Service of New Hampshire to perform make ready work for application NA-11-01 and acknowledge your agreement with the terms and conditions stated in this letter. Please note that this estimate is valid for 90 days and assumes average working conditions. Additional charges may apply if we encounter unusual conditions such as, but not limited to: rock, water or frost.

A second copy of this letter is enclosed for your records. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions at (603) 882-5894 ext.5267

Marc K! Gagne

Charges per our contracts are only for those associated with Public Service of NH facilities and additional charges may be rendered by other utilities. PUC 303.03(h)

				and schedule leck in the am			letter sigi	ned and dated,	in
Custo	mer Sigr	nature			Da	te			
CAU 6D	CCC 7AR	<u>WORK 0</u> 9N1203		ACTIVITY NREF	TASK	RESOUI RO	RCE	AMOUNT \$ 15,143.31	
FOR C	ATV CO	. USE ONLY							
Activity	4	Desc.	<u>Item</u>	Woi	k Order#	<u>PO#</u>	<u>Total</u>	<u>PC</u>	<u>Da</u>

ATTACHMENT 2



Comcast Cable Communications, Inc 115 Epping Road Exeter, NH 03833 603.772.0491 Tel 603.772.0917 Fax www.comcast.com

July 10, 2008

Ms. Marjorie Landry Public Service of New Hampshire 60 W. Pennacook Street Manchester, NH 03105-0330

Re: Comcast Pole Attachment Rent

Dear Ms. Landry:

This letter is in response to the above pole attachment rental invoice dated July 3, 2008.

Please be advised that effective June 30, 2008, Comcast will no longer offer telecommunications services in the State of New Hampshire. To the extent that Comcast provides interconnected Voice over Internet Protocol Service ("VoIP") services, VoIP has not been classified as a telecommunications service, including for the assessment of pole attachment rent. The FCC has repeatedly declined to treat interconnected VoIP as a telecommunications service under the Communications Act (47 U.S.C. §224 as amended). Consequently, there is no basis to apply the telecommunications rate to Comcast's attachment after June 30, 2008.

If you would like to discuss this matter further, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Glenn Fiore

Sr. Construction Manager

ATTACHMENT 3

COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

THIS AMENDMENT made this <u>13th</u> day of <u>June</u>, <u>2003</u> by and between Public Service Company of New Hampshire and Verizon New England Inc., either or both hereinafter referred to as the "Licensor" and Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. referred to as the "Licensee".

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Licensors and MediaOne of New England, Inc., entered into an agreement dated April 15, 2003, covering attachments to certain poles in the State of New Hampshire; and

WHEREAS, MediaOne of New England, Inc., a subsidiary of the former AT&T Broadband, a division of AT&T Corp., merged with Comcast Corporation creating a new company entitled Comcast Corporation. Subsequent to the close of the merger, the legal entity name was changed from MediaOne of New England, Inc., to Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained the parties hereto hereby covenant and agree as follows:

EFFECTIVE: November 18, 2002

- 1. Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. is hereby substituted in place of MediaOne of New England, Inc., as Licensee under said agreement dated April 15, 2003.
- Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. by execution hereof, certifies and represents to the Licensors that the insurance required by said agreement has been obtained in it's name, except as otherwise required by said Agreement, and remains in full force and effect from the effective date of this agreement.
- 3. In all other respects, said agreement dated <u>April 15, 2003</u>, is continued unaltered.

2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused these presents to be executed by their respective representative thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above written.

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. (LICENSOR)
By: Shures
Print Name: Susan D. Mercer
Title: for Director-O.P.E
Date: 4/3/03
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (LICENSOR)
Name:
Name: John G. Libby
Title: Director of Energy Delivery
Date: 5/23/03
COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. (LICENSEE)
By: 7 11 C
Print Name: Kevin M. Casey
Print Name: Kevro M. Casee Title: WP New England
Date: (e/5/03)

POLE ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT

DATED ______April 15, 2003

BETWEEN

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. (LICENSOR)

AND

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, (LICENSOR)

AND

MEDIAONE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC., (LICENSEE)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEI	FINITIONS	1
2.	SCC	OPE OF AGREEMENT	
3.	FEE	CS AND CHARGES	
	3.1	General	ì
	3.2	Attachment Fees	-
	3.3	Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready and Inspection Charges Payment Requirements	-
	3.4	Payment Requirements	8
	3.5	Billing Disputes	9
4.	APP	LICATION FOR AND ISSUANCE OF LICENSES	1
5.	PRE	-CONSTRUCTION SURVEY and MAKE-READY WORK	1
6.	SPE	CIFICATIONS AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS	1
7.		ISTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF ATTACHMENTS	1:
	7.1	General Provisions	1.
	7.2		
•	*****	Rebuild Work and Placement of Power Supplies	14
8.		PECTION OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES	14
9.		UTHORIZED ATTACHMENTS	16
10.		MINATION	16
	10.1		16
		Immediate Termination	17
		General	17
11		Licensee's Removal of Attachments	18
11.		GNMENT OF RIGHTS	18
12. 13.		ETY REQUIREMENTS	19
13. 14.		BILITY AND DAMAGES	19
14. 15.		RANCE	21
15.		ERAL PROVISIONS	22
		Authorization Not Exclusive Failure to Enforce	22
	15.2		22
		Severability	22
		Choice of Laws	23
	15.6	Compliance with Laws	23
	15.7	Survival	23
	15.8	Use of Information	23
	15.9	Access to Records	24
	15.10	Dispute Resolution	24
	15.11	Emergency Conditions	24
16.		1 OF AGREEMENT	24
	- 2-41	- VI INGELLATEDITE	25
APPE	NDICE	es .	26

POLE ATTACHMENT AGRIEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of this <u>15th</u> day of <u>April</u>, <u>2003</u>, between VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having its principal office at 125 High Street. Boston. MA 02110, and PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, having its principal office at 60 West Pennacook Street, Manchester, NH 03105 (either or both hereinafter called "Licensor") and MEDIAONE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC., organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Lawrence, MA (hereinafter called "Licensee").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Licensee for its own use desires to place and maintain cables, equipment, and facilities on poles of Licensor, specifically in the State of New Hampshire; and

WHEREAS, Licensor is willing to permit, to the extent it may lawfully do so, the placement of cables, equipment, and facilities by Licensee on Licensor's poles subject to the terms of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

- Anchor. A facility consisting of an assembly of a rod secured to a fixed object or plate designed to resist the pull of guy strand, or strands.
- 1.2 <u>Anchor Attachment.</u> A guy strand attached to an anchor solely owned or jointly owned by Licensor or for which Licensor is responsible for authorizing attachments.
- 1.3 Attachments. Any of Licensee's facilities in direct contact with or supported by a utility pole, and/or any article of equipment attached to a point on a pole not normally occupied by a strand attachment (e.g., power supplies, equipment, cabinets, terminals, etc.). For billing purposes an

- Attachment is counted for each guy strand and cable supported by a through-bolt and for each article of equipment attached to a Utility Pole.
- 1.4 <u>Attachment Fee.</u> A specified amount revised periodically, billed semi-annually or annually to the Licensee.
- 1.5 Guy Strand. A metal cable of high tensile strength which is attached to a pole and anchor or another pole for the purpose of reducing pole stress.
- 1.6 <u>Joint Owner.</u> A person, corporation or other legal entity having an ownership interest in a pole and/or anchor.
- 1.7 <u>Joint User.</u> A party to whom use of the pole or anchor has been extended by the owner of the facility. The term "Joint User" shall not include Licensees.
- 1.8 <u>Licensee's Facilities.</u> The cable and all associated equipment and hardware owned by the Licensee.
- 1.9 <u>Licensee's Maintenance Work.</u> Work performed by Licensee on its facilities and attachments for repair, replacement and daily servicing of its plant, not associated with any significant overlash or rebuild project.
- 1.10 Make-ready Work. All work, including, but not limited to rearrangement and/or transfer of existing facilities, replacement of a pole or any other changes required to accommodate the attachment of licensee's facilities to a pole or anchor.
- 1.11 Overlash The act of attaching any single strand, hardware, cable, wires and/or apparatus owned by Licensee to same Licensee's existing strand, hardware, cable, wires and/or apparatus.
- 1.12 <u>Periodic Inspection</u>. Licensor's inspection of Licensee's facilities performed to determine that attachments are authorized and are maintained in conformance with the required specifications in Article VI of this Agreement.
- 1.13 <u>Planning Manager's Area.</u> A geographic area assigned to a Verizon New England Engineer representative. The Planning Manager's Areas are set forth in APPENDIX III.
- 1.14 <u>Pre-construction Survey.</u> There are two elements of the Pre-construction Survey: 1.) field inspection of the existing pole and anchor facilities to

- determine any necessary Make-ready Work, and 2.) administrative effort required to process the application and to prepare the charges for Make-ready Work, if applicable.
- 1.15 <u>Post-construction Inspection.</u> Inspection performed to measure and/or to visually observe Licensee's Facilities, during or shortly after completion of construction to ensure the attachment and the installation of the Licensee's Facilities conform to the standards required by this Agreement.
- 1.16 <u>Rebuild.</u> Work other than Licensee's Maintenance Work performed by Licensee to replace, add to or alter its existing attachments or facilities attached to Licensor's poles.
- 1.17 <u>Subsequent Inspections.</u> Inspections performed to confirm the correction of non-conforming conditions, which were observed during Periodic or Post-construction Inspections.
- 1.18 <u>Suspension Strand (Messenger)</u>. A metal cable of high tensile strength attached to a pole and used to support facilities.
- 1.19 <u>Unit Cost.</u> A dollar amount subject to periodic revision by Licensor, associated with Pre-construction Surveys, Make-ready Work and Inspections applicable to specific work operations and functions.
- 1.20 <u>Utility Pole.</u> A pole solely owned, jointly owned, or jointly used by the Licensor and used to support its facilities and/or the facilities of an authorized Licensee.

ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

- 2.1 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, Licensor agrees to issue to Licensee for any lawful purpose, revocable, non-exclusive licenses authorizing the attachment of Licensee's Facilities to Licensor's poles. This Agreement governs the fees, charges, terms and conditions under which Licensor issues such licenses to Licensee. Licensee must obtain separate authorization from, and pay all applicable Fees and Charges to, each Licensor and any Joint Owner or Joint User of any Utility Pole. This Agreement is not in and of itself a license, and before making any attachment to any Utility Pole, Licensee must apply for and obtain a license.
- 2.2 This Agreement supersedes all previous aerial agreements between Licensor and Licensee. This Agreement shall govern all existing licenses between Licensee

- and Licensor as well as all licenses issued subsequent to execution of this Agreement.
- 2.3 No use, however extended, of Licensor's pole or payment of any fees or charges required under this Agreement shall create or vest in Licensee any ownership or property rights in such poles. Licensee's rights herein shall be and remain a license.
- 2.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require Licensor to construct, retain, extend, place, or maintain any pole or other facilities not needed for Licensor's own service requirements.
- 2.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a limitation, restriction, or prohibition against Licensor entering into agreements with other parties regarding the poles covered by this Agreement. The rights of the Licensee shall at all times be subject to any existing agreement(s) or arrangement(s) between Licensor and any Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) of Licensor's poles.
- 2.6 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require Licensor to grant a license where Licensor believes that placement of Licensee's Facilities would interfere with Licensor's existing service requirements, or the use of Licensor's facilities by other parties, or create a hazardous or unsafe condition.

ARTICLE III - FEES AND CHARGES

3.1 General

- 3.1.1 Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor the applicable Attachment Fees and Charges as specified in and in accordance with the terms and conditions of subpart 3.2 of this Agreement and of APPENDIX I, attached hereto and made a part hereof.
- 3.1.2 The Licensor may change the amount of Attachment Fees and Charges specified in APPENDIX I by giving the Licensee not less than sixty (60) days written notice prior to the date the change is to become effective. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Licensee may terminate this Agreement at the end of such sixty (60) day notice period if the change in Fees and Charges is not acceptable to Licensee.

In order to terminate in this circumstance the Licensee must give Licensor written notice of its election to terminate this Agreement at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of such sixty (60) day notice period or for such other period as the parties may agree in writing. Licensee shall thereafter remove its facilities and attachments in accordance with the process set forth in Article X, subpart 10.3 of this Agreement.

Changes in the amount of Attachment Fees and Charges specified in APPENDIX I shall become effective on the date specified by Licensor, subject to the sixty (60) day advance written notice. The changes shall be presumed acceptable unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the sixty (60) day notice period Licensee advises Licensor in writing that the changes are unacceptable and, in addition, submits the issue to the regulatory body asserting jurisdiction over this Agreement for decision. Licensee shall pay the existing Attachment Fees and Charges during the time that the issue is being reviewed by said regulatory body, subject to true-up based on the final determination of rates by said regulatory body plus any interest prescribed by said regulatory body.

Licensor shall provide licensee with an updated APPENDIX I following the effective date of the new Attachment Fees and Charges.

3.2 Attachment Fees

- 3.2.1 Licensees shall pay an Attachment Fee for each attachment made to Licensor's Utility Poles. For the purpose of computing the Attachment Fees due hereunder, the Fee shall be based upon the number of attachments for which licenses have been issued.
- 3.2.2 Attachment Fees are calculated from the first day of the month following the date a license is issued. Fees shall be payable semi-annually or annually in advance, unless otherwise provided. Payment is due within the later of thirty (30) days from the first day of January and the first day of July or thirty (30) days from the date the bill is issued.

3.3 Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work and Inspection Charges

3.3.1 Licensee shall calculate and pay to Licensor the applicable Preconstruction Survey Charge with its License Application. The License Application forms are set forth in APPENDIX IV, attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Pre-construction Survey Charge shall be calculated based on the rates and formulas set forth in APPENDIX I.

- 3.3.2 Except as provided in Appendix VI, Licensee shall make an advance payment of the applicable Charge to Licensor prior to any performance by Licensor of any Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work, Post-construction Inspection or Subsequent Inspection. Where the work to be performed by Licensor is covered by a Unit Cost as described in subpart 3.3.4, the Licensor shall use the Unit Cost for the Charge. Where the work to be performed by Licensor is not covered by a Unit Cost, in whole or in part, the Charge will be based on an estimate of charges. For any charges based on an estimate, the Licensee shall be credited for any amount paid in excess of the Licensor's estimated charges, or shall be billed for any amount in addition to Licensor's estimated charges, as compared to the actual charges as finally computed.
- 3.3.3 Licensee shall make payment to the Licensor within thirty (30) days following the invoice for Periodic Inspections according to subpart 3.3.4 of this Agreement.
- Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work, and Inspection (Postconstruction Inspection, Periodic Inspection and Subsequent Inspection) Charges are based upon Unit Costs, where available. Unit Costs are set forth in APPENDIX I of this Agreement and are subject to change from time to time; provided however, the Unit Costs shall not change more frequently than once every twelve (12) months. Any changes in Unit Cost shall not vary by more than five percent (5%) per annum from the existing Unit Cost; provided that in the case of a significant and unforeseen change in circumstances affecting Licensor's costs, Licensor may adjust Unit Cost in excess of 5%. Sixty (60) days prior to any change in Unit Cost in excess of 5%, Licensor shall provide to Licensee a written explanation of the significant and unforeseen change in circumstance for the increase. A significant and unforeseen change in circumstances affecting Licensor's costs include changes in tax laws, accounting changes, and regulatory, judicial or legislative changes that affect the Licensor's costs. A statement of current Unit Costs are set forth in APPENDIX I and changes thereto shall be published at the time of such change.

For work where Unit Costs are not available, such as cable splicing, such costs will be billed on an actual time and material basis plus an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of such costs

3.4 Payment Requirements

3.4.1 For any bill rendered by Licensor to Licensee hereunder, except where advance payment is required, payment is due within thirty (30) days from the date of the bill. Late payment of any bill is subject to a late fee of 1.5% per month applied to the outstanding balance from the due date of the bill. Licensor, at its sole discretion, may change this late fee from time to time during the term of this Agreement to reflect prevailing market conditions.

- 3.4.2 Non payment of any amount due hereunder shall constitute a default of this Agreement, and subject this Agreement to termination under the provisions of Article X.
- 3.4.3 For any bill rendered by Licensor to Licensee for advance payment of Preconstruction Survey Charges or Make-ready Work Charges, hereunder, payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the bill date. If such advance payment is not received within thirty (30) days, Licensor shall have the right to issue a letter of cancellation no sooner than 15 days thereafter, which will cancel the Licensee's application for the license. Thereafter, if Licensee wishes to proceed, Licensee shall submit a new application for a license, as if it had never submitted the initial application.

3.5 Billing Disputes

- 3.5.1 Where Licensee in good faith disputes a bill or invoice rendered by Licensor, Licensee shall make payment of all portions of said bill or invoice not in dispute as provided in Article III. Where the cumulative amount of all of Licensee's bills or portions(s) of bills in dispute are in excess of \$10,000.00, Licensee shall deposit said cumulative disputed amounts in an interest-bearing escrow account until such time as the disputes are resolved. The disputed amount deposited together with the proportional interest, shall be distributed immediately to Licensor and/or Licensee in accordance with and upon resolution of the dispute. Where the cumulative amount of all of Licensee's bills or portions of bills in dispute are less than or equal to \$10,000.00, Licensee shall make payment to Licensor and shall be rebated an appropriate amount (including interest computed at the prime rate at a bank mutually agreed to by the parties) based on the resolution of the dispute.
- 3.5.2 Where Licensee fails to pay an amount due and owing under this Agreement (including amounts in dispute that are less than or equal to \$10,000) or fails to establish an escrow account for disputed amounts more than \$10,000, or fails to invoke the dispute-resolution procedures set forth in subpart 15.10 of this Agreement within six months of the establishment of amounts disputed in good faith, in addition to all other remedies available to Licensor including termination under provisions of Article X of this Agreement, Licensor may refuse to perform any Survey, Inspection or Make-ready Work for Licensee and may refuse to issue any

license to Licensee until such time as the amount is paid or is deposited in an escrow account.

ARTICLE IV - APPLICATION FOR AND ISSUANCE OF LICENSES

- 4.1 Before Licensee makes an Attachment to any pole, Licensee shall make application for and have received a license therefor in the forms attached in APPENDIX IV. Licensor may update these forms from time to time during the term of the Agreement.
- 4.2 Licensee agrees to limit the filing of applications for pole attachment licenses to include not more than 200 poles on any one application. Licensor reserves the right to limit the filing for pole attachments to no more than 2,000 poles on all applications that are pending approval by Licensor at any one time within a single Planning Manager's Area. Licensee further agrees to designate a desired priority of completion of the Pre-construction Survey and Make-ready Work for each application relative to all other of its applications on file with Licensor at the same time.
- 4.3 Properly completed license applications received by Licensor on the same day from two or more licensees for attachment accommodations on the same pole(s), shall be processed together. All Pre-construction Survey or Make-ready Work required to accommodate the applicants will be completed simultaneously for the benefit of all applicants. All applicants will be rebated with the pro rata share of costs based on the number of applicants.

ARTICLE V - PRE-CONSTRUCTION SURVEY and MAKE-READY WORK

- A Pre-construction Survey is required for each pole and anchor for which an attachment is requested to determine the adequacy of the pole and anchor to accommodate Licensee's attachments and facilities. The Pre-construction Survey will be performed jointly by representatives of Licensor, Joint Owner and/or Joint User, and Licensee unless otherwise agreed to by all parties.
- 5.2 Licensor will process all requests for access to poles on a non-discriminatory basis in the order such requests are received.
- 5.3 Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of written notification in the form of a complete license application and the correct Survey Fee payment, Licensor shall perform or have performed a Pre-construction Survey and present the Survey results. The Survey results will contain one of the following statements:

If no Make-ready Work is required, a license shall be issued for the attachment.

If Licensor determines that the pole or anchor to which Licensee desires to make attachments is inadequate or otherwise needs rearrangement of the existing facilities thereon to accommodate the Licensee's Facilities, in accordance with the specifications set forth in Article VI, Licensor will provide Licensee with an itemized invoice for such anticipated Make-ready Work. The Make-ready Work will be performed following receipt by Licensor of advance payment. Upon receipt of the advance payment, Licensor will provide the Licensee with the estimated start and estimated construction completion date of the Make-ready Work.

If Licensor determines that the pole may not reasonably be rearranged or replaced to accommodate Licensee's Facilities for reasons of capacity, safety, reliability or engineering, the Licensor may refuse to grant a license for attachment. Licensor shall provide the specific reason(s) for such denial. Licensor shall not unreasonably exercise the right reserved hereunder.

- 5.4 Licensor shall make every reasonable effort to complete Make-ready Work within six (6) months of receipt of payment for Make-ready Work from Licensee, except for reasons beyond Licensor's control. For applications consisting of six (6) or fewer poles requiring Make-ready Work, and where Verizon is the only party required to perform make-ready work, Verizon will complete the make-ready work within 45 days.
- 5.5 To the extent practicable, Licensor shall provide Licensee, no less than sixty (60) days prior written notice of any modification of poles (such as pole replacement or relocation) other than routine maintenance, or modifications in response to emergencies, or to a request from a governmental authority.

ARTICLE VI - SPECIFICATIONS AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Licensee's Facilities shall be placed and maintained in accordance with the requirements and specifications of the latest editions of the "Blue Book - Manual of Construction Procedures" (Blue Book), published by Telcordia Technologies Inc.; the "National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection Association, Inc.; the "National Electrical Safety Code" (NESC), published by the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Inc.; and rules and regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor issued pursuant to the "Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970", as amended, (OSHA) or any governing authority having jurisdiction over the subject matter. Where a difference in specifications may exist, the more stringent shall apply.

- 6.2 Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining from the appropriate public and/or private authority any required authorization to construct, operate and/or maintain Licensee's Facilities on public and private property at the location of Licensor's poles. Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining permission from any joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) of the pole before making any attachment thereto. This permission shall be in the form of a license or other writing.
- No license granted under this Agreement shall extend to any of the Licensor's poles where the placement of Licensee's attachments would result in a forfeiture of the rights of licensor, Joint Owner(s), or Joint User(s) to occupy the property on which such poles are located. If placement of Licensee's attachments would result in a forfeiture of the rights of licensor, Joint Owner(s), or Joint User(s) or both, to occupy such property, Licensee agrees to remove its attachments forthwith; and Licensee agrees to pay Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s), or both all losses, damages and costs incurred as a result thereof.

ARTICLE VII - CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF ATTACHMENTS

7.1 General Provisions

- 7.1.1 Licensee shall, at its own expense, construct and maintain its attachments and facilities on Licensor's poles in a safe condition and in a manner acceptable to Licensor. Licensee shall construct and maintain its attachments and facilities so as not to conflict with the use of Licensor's poles by Licensor or by other authorized users of Licensor's poles, nor electrically interfere with Licensor's facilities attached thereto.
- 7.1.2 Licensor shall specify the point of attachment on each of Licensor's poles to be occupied by licensee's attachment. Where multiple Licensees' attachments are involved, Licensor shall attempt, to the extent practical, to designate the same relative position on each pole for each Licensee's attachments.
- 7.1.3 Licensee shall provide written notice to the Licensor of the actual dates of attachment within thirty (30) days of the date of attachment so that Licensor may promptly schedule a Post-construction Inspection.
- 7.1.4 Licensee may attach its guy strand to Licensor's existing anchor rod at no charge where Licensor determines that adequate capacity is available; provided that Licensee agrees to secure any necessary right-of-way therefor from the appropriate property owner. Should Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s), if any, for its own service requirements, need to

- increase its load on the anchor rod to which Licensee's guy is attached, Licensee will either arrange its guy strand on the anchor rod or transfer it to a replacement anchor as determined by Licensor.
- 7.1.5 Should Licensor, Joint Owner(s), Joint User(s), or other Licensee need to attach additional facilities to any of Licensor's poles, to which Licensee is attached, Licensee will either rearrange its attachments on the pole or transfer them to a replacement pole as determined by Licensor so that the additional facilities of Licensor, Joint Owner(s) Joint User(s) or other Licensee may be attached.
- 7.1.6 If Licensee does not rearrange or transfer its attachments within fifteen (15) days after receipt of written notice from Licensor requesting such rearrangement or transfer and indicating that such pole is ready for rearrangement or transfer by Licensee, Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) may perform or have performed such rearrangement or transfer, and, notwithstanding the provisions of subpart 7.1.7, Licensee agrees to pay the cost thereof.
- 7.1.7 Licensee shall not be required to bear any of the costs of rearranging or replacing its attachment if such rearrangement or replacement is necessitated solely as a result of an additional attachment or modification of an existing attachment sought by another party (including the Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s)) and should be paid for any work it performs to accommodate such request. Where multiple parties join in a modification, each party's proportionate share of the total cost will be based on a ratio of the amount of new space occupied by that party to the total amount of new space occupied by all parties joining in the modification. Licensor shall not be required to use revenue that may result from the use of any additional space resulting from such replacement or rearrangement to compensate parties that paid for the modification.
- 7.1.8 Unless otherwise governed by law, all tree trimming made necessary, in the opinion of the Licensor, by reason of the Licensee's proposed attachments at the time of attachment provided the owner(s) of such trees grant permission to the Licensor, shall be performed by contractors approved by and under the direction of Licensor, at the sole expense of the Licensee.
- 7.1.9 Any such tree trimming that may be required on Licensee's customer's premises, to clear Licensee's cable drop, shall be performed by the Licensee at its expense.

- 7.1.10 Tree trimming needed as a result of adverse weather conditions, such as wind, snow or ice storms, shall be performed by Licensor or its approved contractors. Since such tree trimming benefits Licensor, Licensee and other parties that may be lawfully attached to Licensor's poles, Licensee agrees to negotiate in good faith with the Licensor, on a case-by-case basis, to establish an appropriate sharing of costs associated with the tree-trimming projects.
- 7.1.11 For each new facility attached by Licensee to Licensor's poles, on or after the date of execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall place identification tags on cables located on poles and identification apparatus tags on any associated items of Licensee's Facilities. Licensee shall also place these identification tags when engaged in an Overlash or Rebuild project. Overlashed bundles require one tag per bundle, per Licensee. The requirements for identification tags are set forth in the Blue Book.
- 7.1.12 When Licensor deems it an immediate threat to safety and/or an emergency exists, it may rearrange, transfer, or remove Licensee's attachments to Licensor's poles at Licensee's expense. Licensor shall make reasonable efforts to contact Licensee as circumstances permit.
- 7.2 <u>Licensee's Routine Maintenance, Overlash, Rebuild Work and Placement of Power Supplies</u>
 - 7.2.1 Licensee shall work cooperatively with the local Verizon New England Reimbursable Construction Engineer when performing routine Maintenance Work on its facilities and/or attachments. Cooperative practices shall include a system of notification by phone, facsimile, answering system, or otherwise for scheduling purposes. Any work, which involves six or fewer adjacent spans shall be presumed to be routine Maintenance Work. Significant simultaneous maintenance activity within a geographic area may be deemed by Licensor to be Rebuild activity.
 - 7.2.2 Licensee shall follow the procedures set forth in APPENDICES V, VI and VII, hereof, in performing Rebuild or Overlash work and placing power supplies.

ARTICLE VIII - INSPECTION OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES

8.1 The Licensor reserves the right to make Post-construction, Subsequent, and Periodic Inspections of any part or all of Licensee's facilities attached to Licensor's poles and/or anchors. Licensor shall provide Licensee with a copy of any written report of such inspection within thirty (30) days following the inspection. Charges and billing for Inspections as set forth in Article III shall

- apply, provided that Verizon New England commences Post-construction and Subsequent Inspections within 90 days after notification from Licensee that the work is complete.
- 8.2 Except as provided in Appendix VI and VII, Post-construction Inspections shall consist of a 10 percent sample of the poles to which the Licensee has attached facilities after completion of work. If Verizon New England determines that the Licensee is not in compliance at greater than 2 percent of the sampled locations, Verizon New England may inspect and bill Licensee to inspect all poles involved in the project. Within ten (10) days of the completion of a Post-construction Inspection, the Licensor shall notify the Licensee in writing of the date of completion of Post-construction inspection and its findings.
- Where Post-construction Inspection by the Licensor has been completed and non-complying conditions have been identified, Licensee shall correct any non-complying conditions within thirty (30) days of the date of the written notice from the Licensor. If after said 30-day period Licensee has not corrected all such non-complying conditions, Licensor may notify Licensee that if all such non-complying conditions are not corrected within an additional 30-day period, no further attachment authorizations shall be issued to Licensee until Licensee's facilities are brought into compliance. If corrections are not made by Licensee within 30 days from the second notification by Licensor, the Licensor may perform or have performed such corrections and Licensee shall pay to the Licensor the cost of performing such work.
- 8.4 Licensor may undertake Subsequent Inspections to determine if appropriate corrective action has been taken by Licensee. If the Subsequent Inspection finds continued non-complying conditions, Licensor may perform or have performed corrective action at the sole expense of the Licensee or Licensor may terminate the license pursuant to Article X.
- 8.5 The making of Post-construction, Subsequent and/or Periodic Inspections or the failure to do so shall not operate to relieve Licensee of any responsibility, obligation, or liability specified in this Agreement.
- Licensor reserves the right to make Periodic Inspections of all or any part of the attachments or facilities of Licensee at the expense of Licensee, upon sixty (60) days written notice to the Licensee. Periodic Inspections of the entire plant of the Licensee will not be made more often than once every five years unless, in Licensor's judgment, such inspections are required for reasons involving safety or because of an alleged violation by Licensee of the terms of this Agreement. Licensor shall make a reasonable effort to coordinate its Periodic Inspections with any Joint Owner.

ARTICLE IX - UNAUTHORIZED ATTACHMENTS

- 9.1 If any of Licensee's facilities are attached to Licensor's poles without being licensed, Licensor, may recover fees as specified in subpart 9.2, without prejudice to its other rights or remedies under this Agreement, including termination, or otherwise, and require Licensee to submit in writing, within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notification from Licensor of the unauthorized attachment, a pole attachment application. If such application is not received within the specified time period, Licensee shall remove its unauthorized attachments within thirty (30) days of the final date for submitting the required application, or Licensor may remove Licensee's attachments or facilities without liability at the Licensee's expense.
- 9.2 Upon discovery of an unauthorized attachment, Licensee agrees to pay an amount equal to five times the current applicable annual Attachment Fee specified in APPENDIX I times the number of unauthorized attachments. The penalty shall be in addition to all other amounts due and owing to Licensor under this Agreement.

ARTICLE X - TERMINATION

10.1 60-Day Termination

In addition to rights of termination provided to the Licensor under other provisions of this Agreement, the Licensor shall have the right to terminate Licensee's license, authorizations and/or rights granted under provisions of this Agreement where:

- (a) the Licensee's Facilities are maintained or used in violation of any law or in aid of an unlawful act or undertaking;
- (b) the Licensee ceases to have authority to construct and operate its facilities on public or private property at the location of the particular pole or anchor covered by the authorization;
- (c) the Licensee fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement or defaults in any of its obligations thereunder;
- (d) the Licensee attaches to a utility pole and/or anchor without having first been issued authorization therefor:
- (e) the Licensee, subject to provisions specified in Article II, ceases to provide its services;

- (f) the Licensee sublets or apportions part of the licensed assigned space or otherwise permits its assigned space to be used by an entity or an affiliate not a party to this Agreement.
- 10.1.1 The Licensor will notify the Licensee in writing of any instances cited in this subpart. The Licensee shall take corrective action as necessary to eliminate the non-compliance and shall confirm in writing to the Licensor within sixty (60) days following such written notice that the non-compliance has ceased or been corrected. If Licensee fails to discontinue or correct non-compliance and fails to give the required written confirmation to the Licensor within the time stated above, the Licensor may terminate the license(s), authorization and/or rights granted hereunder for the poles and/or anchors at which such non-compliance has occurred.

10.2 <u>Immediate Termination</u>

Pole attachment license(s), authorization and/or rights are automatically and immediately terminated by the Licensor if:

- (a) except in circumstances in which Licensor has accepted evidence of self-insurance in accordance with Article XIV, the Licensee's insurance carrier shall at any time notify the Licensor that the policy or policies of insurance as required in Article XIV will be or have been cancelled or amended so that those requirements will no longer be satisfied;
- (b) the Licensee shall fail to pay any sum due under Article III or to deposit any sum required under this Agreement, or shall fail to maintain satisfactory surety as required in Article XII;
- (c) any authorization that may be required by any governmental or private authority for the construction, operation and maintenance of the Licensee's facilities on a pole or anchor is denied, revoked or cancelled.

10.3 General

10.3.1 In the event of termination of any of the Licensee's licenses, authorization and/or rights hereunder, the Licensee shall remove its facilities from the poles and anchors within sixty (60) days of the effective date of the termination; provided, however, that Licensee shall be liable for and pay all fees and charges pursuant to provisions of this Agreement to the Licensor until Licensee's facilities are actually removed from the utility pole(s) and anchor(s). If the Licensee fails to remove its facilities within

the specified period, the Licensor shall have the right to remove such facilities at the Licensee's expense and without liability on the part of the Licensor for damage or injury to such facilities or interruption of Licensee services.

- 10.3.2 When Licensee's facilities are removed from a pole or anchor, no attachment to the same pole or anchor shall be made until the Licensee has first complied with all of the provisions of this Agreement as though no such pole or anchor attachment had been made previously and all outstanding charges due to the Licensor for such pole or anchor have been paid in full.
- 10.3.3 Any license issued under this Agreement shall automatically terminate when Licensee ceases to have authority to construct, operate and/or maintain its attachments on the public or private property at the location of the particular pole covered by the license. Such automatic termination shall be stayed if the Licensee has sought judicial or regulatory review of the decision that: (1) has acted to terminate such authority or (2) has declared that the Licensee lacks such authority.

10.4 <u>Licensee's Removal of Attachments</u>

- 10.4.1 Licensee may at any time remove its attachments from a pole or anchor after first giving Licensor written notice of such removal. Licensee shall complete and provide to Licensor the Notification of Discontinuance of Use of Poles as contained in APPENDIX IV hereto. Licensor shall verify and execute such form within thirty (30) days of submission. Billing for the attachment shall cease as of the last day of the month in which verification occurs. Licensor may update this form from time to time during the term of this Agreement.
- 10.4.2 Following such removal, no attachment shall again be made to such pole until Licensee shall have complied first with all of the provisions of this Agreement as though no such attachment had been made previously.

ARTICLE XI - ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS

11.1 Licensee shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any authorization granted hereunder, and this Agreement shall not inure to the benefit of Licensee's affiliates, successors or assigns without the prior written consent of Licensor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, no consent of Licensor is required if the Licensee assigns or transfers this Agreement to an affiliate and notifies the Licensor of such assignment or transfer, including any change in the notice address to be provided in accordance with subpart 15.3.

- 11.2 In the event such consent or consents are granted by Licensor, then this Agreement shall extend to and bind the affiliates, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.
- Pole space licensed to Licensee hereunder is for the use of the Licensee named in this Agreement only, and Licensee shall not lease, sublicense, share with, convey or resell to any affiliates, subsidiaries, or any others any such space or rights granted hereunder.

ARTICLE XII - SURETY REQUIREMENTS

- 12.1 Upon request of Licensor, a new Licensee, or an existing Licensee that lacks a history of prompt payments shall furnish bond or other satisfactory evidence of financial security in an amount specified as follows in subpart 12.2 to guarantee the payment of any sums which may become due to the Licensor for Attachment Fees due hereunder and any other charges for work performed for Licensee by the Licensor, including the removal of Licensee's facility upon termination of any authorization issued hereunder.
- 12.2 Licensee shall furnish a bond or other security satisfactory to the Licensor in the following amounts: Security in the amount of \$20.00 shall be required for each authorized pole attachment. The total amount of security required hereunder shall not exceed \$300,000 or be less than \$1,000. Security will not be required where Licensee's total attachment authorizations do not exceed ten (10).
- 12.3 If the financial security is in the form of a bond or irrevocable Letter of Credit, such instrument shall be issued by a surety company or bank satisfactory to the Licensor. The instrument shall contain a provision that the surety company or bank will pay Licensor, within the dollar limits of the instrument, any sum demanded by the Licensor as due under the Agreement, whether or not the Licensee contests its liability to pay such sum, and whether or not the Licensor exercises or has exercised any option it may have to terminate. If any such amounts are paid by the surety company or bank, the Licensee shall restore the surety bond or Letter of Credit to the full amount required under this Article, within thirty (30) days after notice of such payment is sent to the Licensee.
- 12.4 The amount of the bond or the financial security shall not operate as a limitation upon the obligations of the Licensee.

ARTICLE XIII - LIABILITY AND DAMAGES

13.1 Licensor reserves to itself, its successors and assigns, the right to locate and maintain its poles and to operate its facilities in conjunction therewith in such a

manner as will best enable it to fulfill its own service requirements. Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee for any interruption of Licensee's service or for interference with the operation of Licensee's communications services arising in any manner, except from Licensor's sole negligence, out of the use of Licensor's poles.

- 13.2 Licensee shall exercise precaution to avoid damaging the facilities of Licensor and of others attached to Licensor's poles, and Licensee assumes all responsibility for any and all loss from such damage caused by Licensee's employees, agents or contractors. Licensee shall make an immediate report to Licensor and any other user of the occurrence of any such damage and agrees to reimburse the respective parties for all costs incurred in making repairs.
- 13.3 Licensor shall exercise precaution to avoid damaging the facilities of Licensee. Licensor shall make an immediate report to Licensee of the occurrence of any such damage and agrees to reimburse the respective parties for reasonable, direct costs incurred in making repairs.
- 13.4 Except to the extent as may be caused by the negligence of Licensor, Licensee shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Licensor against and from any and all liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses arising from or in connection with this Agreement (including reasonable attorneys' fees) including, but not limited to, those which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Licensor, by reason of:
 - any work or action done upon the poles licensed hereunder or any part thereof performed by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (b) any use, occupation, condition, operation of said poles or any part thereof by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (c) any act or omission on the part of Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees, for which Licensor may be found liable;
 - (d) any accident, injury (including death) or damage to any person or property occurring upon said poles or any part thereof arising out of any use thereof by Licensee or any if its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (e) any failure on the part of Licensee to perform or comply with any of the covenants, agreements, terms or conditions contained in this Agreement;

- (f) payments made under any Workers' Compensation Law or under any plan for employees disability and death benefits arising out of any use of the poles by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
- (g) the erection, maintenance, presence, use, occupancy or removal of Licensee's Facilities by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees or by their proximity to the facilities of other parties attached to Licensor's poles; provided that Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless Licensor against and from any and all such liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses brought, made or asserted by any of Licensee's agents, contractors, servants, or employees of any of Licensee's contractors or agents; or by
- (h) any and all such liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses brought, made or asserted by any of Licensee's agents, contractors, servants, or employees of any of Licensee's contractors or agents.
- 13.5 Licensee shall indemnify, save harmless and defend Licensor from any and all claims and demands of whatever kind which arise directly or indirectly from the operation of Licensee's attachments, including taxes, special charges by others, claims and demands for damages or loss for infringement of copyright, for libel and slander, for unauthorized use of television broadcast programs, and for unauthorized use of other program material, and from and against all claims and demands for infringement of patents with respect to the manufacture, use and operation of Licensee's poles, or otherwise.

The provisions of this Article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement or any license issued thereunder.

ARTICLE XIV - INSURANCE

- 14.1 Licensee and its subcontractors (if any) agree to purchase and maintain during the term hereof all insurance and/or bonds required by law or this Agreement including without limitation:
 - (a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (including, but not limited to, premises-operations, explosion and collapse, underground hazard, broad form property damage, products/completed operations, contractual liability, independent contractors, personal injury) with limits of at least \$2,000,000. combined single limit for each occurrence. (Limits may be satisfied with primary and/or excess coverage.)

- (b) Commercial Automobile Liability with limits of at least \$2,000,000. combined single limit for each occurrence.
- (c) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by Statute, and Employer's Liability insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000. per occurrence.
- 14.2 All insurance must be in effect before Licensor will authorize Licensee to make attachment to Licensor's pole(s) and shall remain in force until such Attachments have been removed from all such poles.
- 14.3 Licensee shall annually submit to Licensor satisfactory evidence of such insurance by an ACORD Form or other satisfactory form in general use by the insurance industry for each company insuring Licensee to the effect that it has insured Licensee for all liabilities of Licensee covered by this Agreement; and that such certificates will name the Licensor as an additional insured under the public liability policy and that it will not cancel or change any such policy of insurance issued to Licensee except after giving of not less than sixty (60) days written notice to Licensor. In the case of a self-insured Licensee, Licensor may elect to accept satisfactory evidence of such self-insurance in lieu of the ACORD Form.

ARTICLE XV - GENERAL PROVISIONS

15.1 <u>Authorization Not Exclusive</u>

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a grant of any exclusive authorization, right or privilege to Licensee. Licensor shall have the right to grant, renew and extend rights and privileges to others not parties to this Agreement, by contract or otherwise, to use any pole covered by this Agreement.

15.2 Failure to Enforce

Failure of Licensor to enforce or insist upon compliance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement or to give notice or declare this Agreement or any authorization granted hereunder terminated shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment of any term or condition of this Agreement, but the same shall be and remain at all times in full force and effect.

15.3 Notices

APPENDIX II sets forth where written notices required under this agreement shall be sent to Licensor and Licensee. Notice shall be acceptable in the following forms: first class mail, or if time-sensitive, facsimile followed by first

class mail or overnight mail with receipt. Licensee shall complete APPENDIX II and submit it to Licensor with this Agreement.

15.4 Severability

If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the entire Agreement, but rather the entire Agreement shall be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions. If the invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions shall be considered an essential element of this Agreement, the parties shall promptly attempt to negotiate a substitute therefor.

15.5 Choice of Law

The construction, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State or Commonwealth where the Licensor's poles are located, as set forth in this Agreement, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law. All actions under this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent subject-matter jurisdiction of the county of the capital of such State or Commonwealth or a regulatory agency with subject-matter jurisdiction, and both parties agree to accept and submit to the personal jurisdiction of such court or regulatory agency. Licensee also agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of any court in the United States wherein an action is commenced against Licensor based on a claim for which Licensee has indemnified Licensor hereunder.

15.6 Compliance with Laws

The parties hereto shall at all times observe and comply with, and the provisions of this Agreement are subject to, all laws, ordinances, and regulations which in any manner affect the rights and obligations of the parties hereto under this Agreement, so long as such laws, ordinances, or regulations remain in effect.

Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Licensor for, from and against and defend Licensor against, any loss or damage sustained because of Licensee's noncompliance hereunder.

15.7 Survival

All rights and obligations hereunder granted or incurred prior to and which by their nature would continue beyond the cancellation, termination, or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such cancellation, termination, or expiration.

15.8 <u>Use of Information</u>

Licensee may provide to Licensor license applications and business plans of its future needs for pole attachments. Such information will allow Licensor to better forecast personnel and equipment requirements. However, as to business plans, such information shall be deemed for use as advance planning purposes only, and no obligation shall be created that Licensor hire personnel or purchase equipment, or Licensee submit license applications for the pole attachments. Such information shall be used only by such employees or contractors of Licensor who have responsibilities relating to the administration of, or to work to be performed under, this Agreement and said employees shall treat such information as Licensor treats its own confidential information of similar type and value. Licensor's obligations hereunder shall not extend to any information that are now available to the public or become available by reason of acts or omissions not attributable to Licensor.

15.9 Access to Records

Licensor, upon receipt of written request, shall provide access to Licensor's pole records in accordance with "Job Aid For Requests To Records" attached hereto as APPENDIX VIII. Licensor may update this form from time to time during the term of this Agreement.

15.10 Dispute Resolution

In the case where Licensee claims that a term or condition is unjust or unreasonable, Licensee shall submit a complaint to the Manager-License Administration Group, specifying all information and its argument relied on to justify its claim. Licensor shall provide a written response to such complaint within 10 business days after receipt of the complaint. Such response shall specifically address all contentions made by Licensee. If Licensee continues to have issues, it may request a meeting with Manager-License Administration Group to discuss such issues. Such meeting shall be held within five (5) business days. If the Licensee is not satisfied with the results of such meeting, it may file a complaint with the regulatory body of competent jurisdiction.

15.11 Emergency Conditions

All parties shall work cooperatively in the case of an emergency to restore service to their respective customers.

ARTICLE XVI - TERM OF AGREEMENT

Except as provided below, this Agreement shall remain in effect; provided, however, that the Licensor may, no less than two years from this date and upon written notice, require the Licensee to engage in good-faith negotiations with the Licensor to amend the Agreement to comport with regulatory changes or obligations, If, the parties cannot agree to an amendment, they shall submit the matter to the regulatory agency with jurisdiction to resolve the matter. The Agreement may be terminated by Licensee by written notice of termination no less than 30 days prior to the effective date of such termination; provided, however, that such early termination shall not become effective until the Licensee has discontinued all existing licenses and has removed any and all facilities. The Agreement may be terminated upon written notice by the Licensor if, within one year from this date, the Licensee has placed no facilities on the Licensor's poles in accordance with the Agreement.

Upon execution, this Agreement cancels and supercedes all previously executed Agreements between MediaOne of New England, Public Service Company of New Hampshire and Verizon New England Inc. with respect to the subject matter contained herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in multiple originals on the day and year first above written.

Licensor: VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC.
By:
(Print Name) Susan Dyer Mercer
(Title) for Director Outside Plant Engineering
(Date) 4/15/03
Licensor: PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Ву:
(Print Name) John G. Libby
(Title) Director - Energy Delivery
(Date)2/7/03
Licensee: MEDIAONE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.
By: 76 M
(Print Name) Kevin M. Cousey (Fille) EVI, New England
(Date) 4 7 03

ATTACHMENT 4

COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

THIS AMENDMENT made this _	21st	_day of	July	, 2003, by
and between Unitil Energry Systems, Inc.				
hereinafter referred to as the "Licensor" ar	nd Comcast	of Maine/	New Hamps	hire, Inc.
referred to as the "Licensee".			•	

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Licensors and MediaOne of New England Inc. entered into an agreement dated <u>July 8, 1991</u>, covering attachments to certain poles in the City of Concord and the Towns of Boscawen, Bow, Canterbury, Chichester, Hopkinton, Loudon and Pembroke in the State of New Hampshire.

WHEREAS, MediaOne of New England Inc., a subsidiary of the former AT&T Broadband, a division of AT&T Corp., merged with Comcast Corporation creating a new company entitled Comcast Corporation. Subsequent to the close of the merger, the legal entity name was changed from MediaOne of New Hampshire, Inc. to Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained the parties hereto hereby covenant and agree as follows:

EFFECTIVE: November 18, 2002

- 1. Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. is hereby substituted in place of MediaOne of New England, Inc., as Licensee under said agreement dated July 8, 1991.
- Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. by execution hereof, certifies and represents to the Licensors that the insurance required by said agreement has been obtained in it's name, except as otherwise required by said agreement, and remains in full force and effect from the effective date of this agreement.
- 3. In all other respects, said Agreement dated <u>July 8, 1991</u>, is continued unaltered.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused these presents to be executed by their respective thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above written.

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND, INC.
(LICENSOR)
By: Shuce
Print Name: Susan D. Mercer
Title: <u>for Director-O.P.E.</u>
Date:
UNITIL ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC. (LICENSOR)
By: Vout A. Come -
Print Name: POBERT A. CONNER
Title:
Date:
COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. (LICENSEE)
Ву: 7 / 2/2
Print Name: Kevin M. Casey
Title: SUP New England
Date: 7/10/03

P	O	T.	E	A	T1	ľA	CHN	MENI	`A	.GR	EEN	MEN	$ ext{TV}$
---	---	----	---	---	----	----	-----	------	----	-----	-----	------------	------------

DATED ______ July 21, 2003

BETWEEN

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. (LICENSOR)

AND

UNITIL ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC., (LICENSOR)

AND

COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC., (LICENSEE)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.		IITIONS	3
2.		E OF AGREEMENT	
3.		AND CHARGES	,
	3.1	General	
	3.2	Attachment Fees Neke ready and Inspection Charges	
	3.3	Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready and Inspection Charges	
		Payment Requirements	
	3.5	Billing Disputes ICATION FOR AND ISSUANCE OF LICENSES	
4.	APPL	CONSTRUCTION SURVEY and MAKE-READY WORK	
5.	PRE-C	IFICATIONS AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS	
6.	SPEC	STRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF ATTACHMENTS	
7.		General Provisions	
	7.1	Licensee's Routine Maintenance, Overlash,	
	1.2	Rebuild Work and Placement of Power Supplies	
•	TRICINI	ECTION OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES	
8.	INSPI	UTHORIZED ATTACHMENTS	
9.		MINATION	
10.		60-Day Termination	
	10.1	Immediate Termination	
		General	
	10.3	Licensee's Removal of Attachments	
	10.4	GNMENT OF RIGHTS	
11.	ASSI	ETY REQUIREMENTS	
12.		BILITY AND DAMAGES	
13.		JRANCE	
14.	CEN	ERAL PROVISIONS	
15.	15.1	Authorization Not Exclusive	
		Failure to Enforce	
		Notices	
		Severability	
		Choice of Laws	
		Compliance with Laws	
		Survival	
	15.8		
	15.9		
		0 Dispute Resolution	
	15.1	1 Emergency Conditions	
16.		RM OF AGREEMENT	
10.			
AP	PENDI	CES	

POLE ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of this _______ day of _______ July __, 2003, between VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having its principal office at 125 High Street, Boston, MA 02110, and UNITIL ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC., organized and existing under the laws of the New Hampshire, having its principal office in Concord, NH 03301-4655 (either or both hereinafter called "Licensor") and COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC., organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, having its principal office in Andover, MA (hereinafter called "Licensee").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Licensee for its own use desires to place and maintain cables, equipment, and facilities on poles of Licensor, specifically in the State of New Hampshire; and

WHEREAS, Licensor is willing to permit, to the extent it may lawfully do so, the placement of cables, equipment, and facilities by Licensee on Licensor's poles subject to the terms of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 Anchor. A facility consisting of an assembly of a rod secured to a fixed object or plate designed to resist the pull of guy strand, or strands.
- 1.2 <u>Anchor Attachment.</u> A guy strand attached to an anchor solely owned or jointly owned by Licensor or for which Licensor is responsible for authorizing attachments.
- 1.3 <u>Attachments.</u> Any of Licensee's facilities in direct contact with or supported by a utility pole, and/or any article of equipment attached to a point on a pole not normally occupied by a strand attachment (e.g., power supplies, equipment, cabinets, terminals, etc.). For billing purposes an

- Attachment is counted for each guy strand and cable supported by a through-bolt and for each article of equipment attached to a Utility Pole.
- 1.4 <u>Attachment Fee.</u> A specified amount revised periodically, billed semi-annually or annually to the Licensee.
- 1.5 <u>Guy Strand.</u> A metal cable of high tensile strength which is attached to a pole and anchor or another pole for the purpose of reducing pole stress.
- 1.6 <u>Joint Owner.</u> A person, corporation or other legal entity having an ownership interest in a pole and/or anchor.
- 1.7 <u>Joint User.</u> A party to whom use of the pole or anchor has been extended by the owner of the facility. The term "Joint User" shall not include Licensees.
- 1.8 <u>Licensee's Facilities.</u> The cable and all associated equipment and hardware owned by the Licensee.
- 1.9 <u>Licensee's Maintenance Work.</u> Work performed by Licensee on its facilities and attachments for repair, replacement and daily servicing of its plant, not associated with any significant overlash or rebuild project.
- 1.10 Make-ready Work. All work, including, but not limited to rearrangement and/or transfer of existing facilities, replacement of a pole or any other changes required to accommodate the attachment of licensee's facilities to a pole or anchor.
- 1.11 Overlash The act of attaching any single strand, hardware, cable, wires and/or apparatus owned by Licensee to same Licensee's existing strand, hardware, cable, wires and/or apparatus.
- 1.12 <u>Periodic Inspection</u>. Licensor's inspection of Licensee's facilities performed to determine that attachments are authorized and are maintained in conformance with the required specifications in Article VI of this Agreement.
- 1.13 Planning Manager's Area. A geographic area assigned to a Verizon New England Engineer representative. The Planning Manager's Areas are set forth in APPENDIX III.
- 1.14 <u>Pre-construction Survey.</u> There are two elements of the Pre-construction Survey: 1.) field inspection of the existing pole and anchor facilities to

- determine any necessary Make-ready Work, and 2.) administrative effort required to process the application and to prepare the charges for Make-ready Work, if applicable.
- 1.15 Post-construction Inspection. Inspection performed to measure and/or to visually observe Licensee's Facilities, during or shortly after completion of construction to ensure the attachment and the installation of the Licensee's Facilities conform to the standards required by this Agreement.
- 1.16 Rebuild. Work other than Licensee's Maintenance Work performed by Licensee to replace, add to or alter its existing attachments or facilities attached to Licensor's poles.
- 1.17 <u>Subsequent Inspections.</u> Inspections performed to confirm the correction of non-conforming conditions, which were observed during Periodic or Post-construction Inspections.
- 1.18 <u>Suspension Strand (Messenger).</u> A metal cable of high tensile strength attached to a pole and used to support facilities.
- 1.19 Unit Cost. A dollar amount subject to periodic revision by Licensor, associated with Pre-construction Surveys, Make-ready Work and Inspections applicable to specific work operations and functions.
- 1.20 <u>Utility Pole.</u> A pole solely owned, jointly owned, or jointly used by the Licensor and used to support its facilities and/or the facilities of an authorized Licensee.

ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

- Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, Licensor agrees to issue to Licensee for any lawful purpose, revocable, non-exclusive licenses authorizing the attachment of Licensee's Facilities to Licensor's poles. This Agreement governs the fees, charges, terms and conditions under which Licensor issues such licenses to Licensee. Licensee must obtain separate authorization from, and pay all applicable Fees and Charges to, each Licensor and any Joint Owner or Joint User of any Utility Pole. This Agreement is not in and of itself a license, and before making any attachment to any Utility Pole, Licensee must apply for and obtain a license.
- 2.2 This Agreement supersedes all previous aerial agreements between Licensor and Licensee. This Agreement shall govern all existing licenses between Licensee

- and Licensor as well as all licenses issued subsequent to execution of this Agreement.
- 2.3 No use, however extended, of Licensor's pole or payment of any fees or charges required under this Agreement shall create or vest in Licensee any ownership or property rights in such poles. Licensee's rights herein shall be and remain a license.
- 2.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require Licensor to construct, retain, extend, place, or maintain any pole or other facilities not needed for Licensor's own service requirements.
- 2.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a limitation, restriction, or prohibition against Licensor entering into agreements with other parties regarding the poles covered by this Agreement. The rights of the Licensee shall at all times be subject to any existing agreement(s) or arrangement(s) between Licensor and any Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) of Licensor's poles.
- Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require Licensor to grant a license where Licensor believes that placement of Licensee's Facilities would interfere with Licensor's existing service requirements, or the use of Licensor's facilities by other parties, or create a hazardous or unsafe condition.

ARTICLE III – FEES AND CHARGES

3.1 General

- 3.1.1 Licensee agrees to pay to Licensor the applicable Attachment Fees and Charges as specified in and in accordance with the terms and conditions of subpart 3.2 of this Agreement and of APPENDIX I, attached hereto and made a part hereof.
- 3.1.2 The Licensor may change the amount of Attachment Fees and Charges specified in APPENDIX I by giving the Licensee not less than sixty (60) days written notice prior to the date the change is to become effective. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Licensee may terminate this Agreement at the end of such sixty (60) day notice period if the change in Fees and Charges is not acceptable to Licensee.

In order to terminate in this circumstance the Licensee must give Licensor written notice of its election to terminate this Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of such sixty (60) day notice period or for such other period as the parties may agree in writing. Licensee shall thereafter remove its facilities and attachments in accordance with the process set forth in Article X, subpart 10.3 of this Agreement.

Changes in the amount of Attachment Fees and Charges specified in APPENDIX I shall become effective on the date specified by Licensor, subject to the sixty (60) day advance written notice. The changes shall be presumed acceptable unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the sixty (60) day notice period Licensee advises Licensor in writing that the changes are unacceptable and, in addition, submits the issue to the regulatory body asserting jurisdiction over this Agreement for decision. Licensee shall pay the existing Attachment Fees and Charges during the time that the issue is being reviewed by said regulatory body, subject to true-up based on the final determination of rates by said regulatory body plus any interest prescribed by said regulatory body.

Licensor shall provide licensee with an updated APPENDIX I following the effective date of the new Attachment Fees and Charges.

3.2 Attachment Fees

- 3.2.1 Licensees shall pay an Attachment Fee for each attachment made to Licensor's Utility Poles. For the purpose of computing the Attachment Fees due hereunder, the Fee shall be based upon the number of attachments for which licenses have been issued.
- 3.2.2 Attachment Fees are calculated from the first day of the month following the date a license is issued. Fees shall be payable semi-annually or annually in advance, unless otherwise provided. Payment is due within the later of thirty (30) days from the first day of January and the first day of July or thirty (30) days from the date the bill is issued.

3.3 Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work and Inspection Charges

3.3.1 Licensee shall calculate and pay to Licensor the applicable Preconstruction Survey Charge with its License Application. The License Application forms are set forth in APPENDIX IV, attached hereto and made a part hereof. The Pre-construction Survey Charge shall be calculated based on the rates and formulas set forth in APPENDIX I.

- 3.3.2 Except as provided in Appendix VI, Licensee shall make an advance payment of the applicable Charge to Licensor prior to any performance by Licensor of any Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work, Post-construction Inspection or Subsequent Inspection. Where the work to be performed by Licensor is covered by a Unit Cost as described in subpart 3.3.4, the Licensor shall use the Unit Cost for the Charge. Where the work to be performed by Licensor is not covered by a Unit Cost, in whole or in part, the Charge will be based on an estimate of charges. For any charges based on an estimate, the Licensee shall be credited for any amount paid in excess of the Licensor's estimated charges, or shall be billed for any amount in addition to Licensor's estimated charges, as compared to the actual charges as finally computed.
- 3.3.3 Licensee shall make payment to the Licensor within thirty (30) days following the invoice for Periodic Inspections according to subpart 3.3.4 of this Agreement.
- Pre-construction Survey, Make-ready Work, and Inspection (Postconstruction Inspection, Periodic Inspection and Subsequent Inspection) Charges are based upon Unit Costs, where available. Unit Costs are set forth in APPENDIX I of this Agreement and are subject to change from time to time; provided however, the Unit Costs shall not change more frequently than once every twelve (12) months. Any changes in Unit Cost shall not vary by more than five percent (5%) per annum from the existing Unit Cost; provided that in the case of a significant and unforeseen change in circumstances affecting Licensor's costs, Licensor may adjust Unit Cost in excess of 5%. Sixty (60) days prior to any change in Unit Cost in excess of 5%, Licensor shall provide to Licensee a written explanation of the significant and unforeseen change in circumstance for the increase. A significant and unforeseen change in circumstances affecting Licensor's costs include changes in tax laws, accounting changes, and regulatory, judicial or legislative changes that affect the Licensor's costs. A statement of current Unit Costs are set forth in APPENDIX I and changes thereto shall be published at the time of such change.

For work where Unit Costs are not available, such as cable splicing, such costs will be billed on an actual time and material basis plus an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of such costs

3.4 Payment Requirements

3.4.1 For any bill rendered by Licensor to Licensee hereunder, except where advance payment is required, payment is due within thirty (30) days from the date of the bill. Late payment of any bill is subject to a late fee of 1.5% per month applied to the outstanding balance from the due date of the bill. Licensor, at its sole discretion, may change this late fee from time to time during the term of this Agreement to reflect prevailing market conditions.

- 3.4.2 Non payment of any amount due hereunder shall constitute a default of this Agreement, and subject this Agreement to termination under the provisions of Article X.
- 3.4.3 For any bill rendered by Licensor to Licensee for advance payment of Preconstruction Survey Charges or Make-ready Work Charges, hereunder, payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the bill date. If such advance payment is not received within thirty (30) days, Licensor shall have the right to issue a letter of cancellation no sooner than 15 days thereafter, which will cancel the Licensee's application for the license. Thereafter, if Licensee wishes to proceed, Licensee shall submit a new application for a license, as if it had never submitted the initial application.

3.5 Billing Disputes

- 3.5.1 Where Licensee in good faith disputes a bill or invoice rendered by Licensor, Licensee shall make payment of all portions of said bill or invoice not in dispute as provided in Article III. Where the cumulative amount of all of Licensee's bills or portions(s) of bills in dispute are in excess of \$10,000.00, Licensee shall deposit said cumulative disputed amounts in an interest-bearing escrow account until such time as the disputes are resolved. The disputed amount deposited together with the proportional interest, shall be distributed immediately to Licensor and/or Licensee in accordance with and upon resolution of the dispute. Where the cumulative amount of all of Licensee's bills or portions of bills in dispute are less than or equal to \$10,000.00, Licensee shall make payment to Licensor and shall be rebated an appropriate amount (including interest computed at the prime rate at a bank mutually agreed to by the parties) based on the resolution of the dispute.
 - 3.5.2 Where Licensee fails to pay an amount due and owing under this Agreement (including amounts in dispute that are less than or equal to \$10,000) or fails to establish an escrow account for disputed amounts more than \$10,000, or fails to invoke the dispute-resolution procedures set forth in subpart 15.10 of this Agreement within six months of the establishment of amounts disputed in good faith, in addition to all other remedies available to Licensor including termination under provisions of Article X of this Agreement, Licensor may refuse to perform any Survey, Inspection or Make-ready Work for Licensee and may refuse to issue any

license to Licensee until such time as the amount is paid or is deposited in an escrow account.

ARTICLE IV - APPLICATION FOR AND ISSUANCE OF LICENSES

- 4.1 Before Licensee makes an Attachment to any pole, Licensee shall make application for and have received a license therefor in the forms attached in APPENDIX IV. Licensor may update these forms from time to time during the term of the Agreement.
- 4.2 Licensee agrees to limit the filing of applications for pole attachment licenses to include not more than 200 poles on any one application. Licensor reserves the right to limit the filing for pole attachments to no more than 2,000 poles on all applications that are pending approval by Licensor at any one time within a single Planning Manager's Area. Licensee further agrees to designate a desired priority of completion of the Pre-construction Survey and Make-ready Work for each application relative to all other of its applications on file with Licensor at the same time.
- 4.3 Properly completed license applications received by Licensor on the same day from two or more licensees for attachment accommodations on the same pole(s), shall be processed together. All Pre-construction Survey or Make-ready Work required to accommodate the applicants will be completed simultaneously for the benefit of all applicants. All applicants will be rebated with the pro rata share of costs based on the number of applicants.

ARTICLE V - PRE-CONSTRUCTION SURVEY and MAKE-READY WORK

- A Pre-construction Survey is required for each pole and anchor for which an attachment is requested to determine the adequacy of the pole and anchor to accommodate Licensee's attachments and facilities. The Pre-construction Survey will be performed jointly by representatives of Licensor, Joint Owner and/or Joint User, and Licensee unless otherwise agreed to by all parties.
- 5.2 Licensor will process all requests for access to poles on a non-discriminatory basis in the order such requests are received.
- 5.3 Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of written notification in the form of a complete license application and the correct Survey Fee payment, Licensor shall perform or have performed a Pre-construction Survey and present the Survey results. The Survey results will contain one of the following statements:

If no Make-ready Work is required, a license shall be issued for the attachment.

If Licensor determines that the pole or anchor to which Licensee desires to make attachments is inadequate or otherwise needs rearrangement of the existing facilities thereon to accommodate the Licensee's Facilities, in accordance with the specifications set forth in Article VI, Licensor will provide Licensee with an itemized invoice for such anticipated Make-ready Work. The Make-ready Work will be performed following receipt by Licensor of advance payment. Upon receipt of the advance payment, Licensor will provide the Licensee with the estimated start and estimated construction completion date of the Make-ready Work.

If Licensor determines that the pole may not reasonably be rearranged or replaced to accommodate Licensee's Facilities for reasons of capacity, safety, reliability or engineering, the Licensor may refuse to grant a license for attachment. Licensor shall provide the specific reason(s) for such denial. Licensor shall not unreasonably exercise the right reserved hereunder.

- 5.4 Licensor shall make every reasonable effort to complete Make-ready Work within six (6) months of receipt of payment for Make-ready Work from Licensee, except for reasons beyond Licensor's control. For applications consisting of six (6) or fewer poles requiring Make-ready Work, and where Verizon is the only party required to perform make-ready work, Verizon will complete the make-ready work within 45 days.
- To the extent practicable, Licensor shall provide Licensee, no less than sixty (60) days prior written notice of any modification of poles (such as pole replacement or relocation) other than routine maintenance, or modifications in response to emergencies, or to a request from a governmental authority.

ARTICLE VI - SPECIFICATIONS AND LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Licensee's Facilities shall be placed and maintained in accordance with the requirements and specifications of the latest editions of the "Blue Book - Manual of Construction Procedures" (Blue Book), published by Telcordia Technologies Inc.; the "National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection Association, Inc.; the "National Electrical Safety Code" (NESC), published by the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Inc.; and rules and regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor issued pursuant to the "Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970", as amended, (OSHA) or any governing authority having jurisdiction over the subject matter. Where a difference in specifications may exist, the more stringent shall apply.

- 6.2 Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining from the appropriate public and/or private authority any required authorization to construct, operate and/or maintain Licensee's Facilities on public and private property at the location of Licensor's poles. Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining permission from any joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) of the pole before making any attachment thereto. This permission shall be in the form of a license or other writing.
- No license granted under this Agreement shall extend to any of the Licensor's poles where the placement of Licensee's attachments would result in a forfeiture of the rights of licensor, Joint Owner(s), or Joint User(s) to occupy the property on which such poles are located. If placement of Licensee's attachments would result in a forfeiture of the rights of licensor, Joint Owner(s), or Joint User(s) or both, to occupy such property, Licensee agrees to remove its attachments forthwith; and Licensee agrees to pay Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s), or both all losses, damages and costs incurred as a result thereof.

ARTICLE VII - CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF ATTACHMENTS

7.1 General Provisions

- 7.1.1 Licensee shall, at its own expense, construct and maintain its attachments and facilities on Licensor's poles in a safe condition and in a manner acceptable to Licensor. Licensee shall construct and maintain its attachments and facilities so as not to conflict with the use of Licensor's poles by Licensor or by other authorized users of Licensor's poles, nor electrically interfere with Licensor's facilities attached thereto.
- 7.1.2 Licensor shall specify the point of attachment on each of Licensor's poles to be occupied by licensee's attachment. Where multiple Licensees' attachments are involved, Licensor shall attempt, to the extent practical, to designate the same relative position on each pole for each Licensee's attachments.
- 7.1.3 Licensee shall provide written notice to the Licensor of the actual dates of attachment within thirty (30) days of the date of attachment so that Licensor may promptly schedule a Post-construction Inspection.
- 7.1.4 Licensee may attach its guy strand to Licensor's existing anchor rod at no charge where Licensor determines that adequate capacity is available; provided that Licensee agrees to secure any necessary right-of-way therefor from the appropriate property owner. Should Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s), if any, for its own service requirements, need to

- increase its load on the anchor rod to which Licensee's guy is attached, Licensee will either arrange its guy strand on the anchor rod or transfer it to a replacement anchor as determined by Licensor.
- 7.1.5 Should Licensor, Joint Owner(s), Joint User(s), or other Licensee need to attach additional facilities to any of Licensor's poles, to which Licensee is attached, Licensee will either rearrange its attachments on the pole or transfer them to a replacement pole as determined by Licensor so that the additional facilities of Licensor, Joint Owner(s) Joint User(s) or other Licensee may be attached.
- 7.1.6 If Licensee does not rearrange or transfer its attachments within fifteen (15) days after receipt of written notice from Licensor requesting such rearrangement or transfer and indicating that such pole is ready for rearrangement or transfer by Licensee, Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s) may perform or have performed such rearrangement or transfer, and, notwithstanding the provisions of subpart 7.1.7, Licensee agrees to pay the cost thereof.
- 7.1.7 Licensee shall not be required to bear any of the costs of rearranging or replacing its attachment if such rearrangement or replacement is necessitated solely as a result of an additional attachment or modification of an existing attachment sought by another party (including the Licensor, Joint Owner(s) or Joint User(s)) and should be paid for any work it performs to accommodate such request. Where multiple parties join in a modification, each party's proportionate share of the total cost will be based on a ratio of the amount of new space occupied by that party to the total amount of new space occupied by all parties joining in the modification. Licensor shall not be required to use revenue that may result from the use of any additional space resulting from such replacement or rearrangement to compensate parties that paid for the modification.
 - 7.1.8 Unless otherwise governed by law, all tree trimming made necessary, in the opinion of the Licensor, by reason of the Licensee's proposed attachments at the time of attachment provided the owner(s) of such trees grant permission to the Licensor, shall be performed by contractors approved by and under the direction of Licensor, at the sole expense of the Licensee.
 - 7.1.9 Any such tree trimming that may be required on Licensee's customer's premises, to clear Licensee's cable drop, shall be performed by the Licensee at its expense.

- 7.1.10 Tree trimming needed as a result of adverse weather conditions, such as wind, snow or ice storms, shall be performed by Licensor or its approved contractors. Since such tree trimming benefits Licensor, Licensee and other parties that may be lawfully attached to Licensor's poles, Licensee agrees to negotiate in good faith with the Licensor, on a case-by-case basis, to establish an appropriate sharing of costs associated with the tree-trimming projects.
- 7.1.11 For each new facility attached by Licensee to Licensor's poles, on or after the date of execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall place identification tags on cables located on poles and identification apparatus tags on any associated items of Licensee's Facilities. Licensee shall also place these identification tags when engaged in an Overlash or Rebuild project. Overlashed bundles require one tag per bundle, per Licensee. The requirements for identification tags are set forth in the Blue Book.
- 7.1.12 When Licensor deems it an immediate threat to safety and/or an emergency exists, it may rearrange, transfer, or remove Licensee's attachments to Licensor's poles at Licensee's expense. Licensor shall make reasonable efforts to contact Licensee as circumstances permit.
- 7.2 <u>Licensee's Routine Maintenance, Overlash, Rebuild Work and Placement of Power Supplies</u>
 - 7.2.1 Licensee shall work cooperatively with the local Verizon New England Reimbursable Construction Engineer when performing routine Maintenance Work on its facilities and/or attachments. Cooperative practices shall include a system of notification by phone, facsimile, answering system, or otherwise for scheduling purposes. Any work, which involves six or fewer adjacent spans shall be presumed to be routine Maintenance Work. Significant simultaneous maintenance activity within a geographic area may be deemed by Licensor to be Rebuild activity.
 - 7.2.2 Licensee shall follow the procedures set forth in APPENDICES V, VI and VII, hereof, in performing Rebuild or Overlash work and placing power supplies.

ARTICLE VIII - INSPECTION OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES

8.1 The Licensor reserves the right to make Post-construction, Subsequent, and Periodic Inspections of any part or all of Licensee's facilities attached to Licensor's poles and/or anchors. Licensor shall provide Licensee with a copy of any written report of such inspection within thirty (30) days following the inspection. Charges and billing for Inspections as set forth in Article III shall

- apply, provided that Verizon New England commences Post-construction and Subsequent Inspections within 90 days after notification from Licensee that the work is complete.
- 8.2 Except as provided in Appendix VI and VII, Post-construction Inspections shall consist of a 10 percent sample of the poles to which the Licensee has attached facilities after completion of work. If Verizon New England determines that the Licensee is not in compliance at greater than 2 percent of the sampled locations, Verizon New England may inspect and bill Licensee to inspect all poles involved in the project. Within ten (10) days of the completion of a Post-construction Inspection, the Licensor shall notify the Licensee in writing of the date of completion of Post-construction inspection and its findings.
- Where Post-construction Inspection by the Licensor has been completed and non-complying conditions have been identified, Licensee shall correct any non-complying conditions within thirty (30) days of the date of the written notice from the Licensor. If after said 30-day period Licensee has not corrected all such non-complying conditions, Licensor may notify Licensee that if all such non-complying conditions are not corrected within an additional 30-day period, no further attachment authorizations shall be issued to Licensee until Licensee's facilities are brought into compliance. If corrections are not made by Licensee within 30 days from the second notification by Licensor, the Licensor may perform or have performed such corrections and Licensee shall pay to the Licensor the cost of performing such work.
- 8.4 Licensor may undertake Subsequent Inspections to determine if appropriate corrective action has been taken by Licensee. If the Subsequent Inspection finds continued non-complying conditions, Licensor may perform or have performed corrective action at the sole expense of the Licensee or Licensor may terminate the license pursuant to Article X.
- 8.5 The making of Post-construction, Subsequent and/or Periodic Inspections or the failure to do so shall not operate to relieve Licensee of any responsibility, obligation, or liability specified in this Agreement.
- Licensor reserves the right to make Periodic Inspections of all or any part of the attachments or facilities of Licensee at the expense of Licensee, upon sixty (60) days written notice to the Licensee. Periodic Inspections of the entire plant of the Licensee will not be made more often than once every five years unless, in Licensor's judgment, such inspections are required for reasons involving safety or because of an alleged violation by Licensee of the terms of this Agreement. Licensor shall make a reasonable effort to coordinate its Periodic Inspections with any Joint Owner.



ARTICLE IX - UNAUTHORIZED ATTACHMENTS

- 9.1 If any of Licensee's facilities are attached to Licensor's poles without being licensed, Licensor, may recover fees as specified in subpart 9.2, without prejudice to its other rights or remedies under this Agreement, including termination, or otherwise, and require Licensee to submit in writing, within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notification from Licensor of the unauthorized attachment, a pole attachment application. If such application is not received within the specified time period, Licensee shall remove its unauthorized attachments within thirty (30) days of the final date for submitting the required application, or Licensor may remove Licensee's attachments or facilities without liability at the Licensee's expense.
- 9.2 Upon discovery of an unauthorized attachment, Licensee agrees to pay an amount equal to five times the current applicable annual Attachment Fee specified in APPENDIX I times the number of unauthorized attachments. The penalty shall be in addition to all other amounts due and owing to Licensor under this Agreement.

ARTICLE X - TERMINATION

10.1 60-Day Termination

In addition to rights of termination provided to the Licensor under other provisions of this Agreement, the Licensor shall have the right to terminate Licensee's license, authorizations and/or rights granted under provisions of this Agreement where:

- (a) the Licensee's Facilities are maintained or used in violation of any law or in aid of an unlawful act or undertaking;
- (b) the Licensee ceases to have authority to construct and operate its facilities on public or private property at the location of the particular pole or anchor covered by the authorization;
- (c) the Licensee fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement or defaults in any of its obligations thereunder;
- (d) the Licensee attaches to a utility pole and/or anchor without having first been issued authorization therefor;
- (e) the Licensee, subject to provisions specified in Article II, ceases to provide its services;

- (f) the Licensee sublets or apportions part of the licensed assigned space or otherwise permits its assigned space to be used by an entity or an affiliate not a party to this Agreement.
- 10.1.1 The Licensor will notify the Licensee in writing of any instances cited in this subpart. The Licensee shall take corrective action as necessary to eliminate the non-compliance and shall confirm in writing to the Licensor within sixty (60) days following such written notice that the non-compliance has ceased or been corrected. If Licensee fails to discontinue or correct non-compliance and fails to give the required written confirmation to the Licensor within the time stated above, the Licensor may terminate the license(s), authorization and/or rights granted hereunder for the poles and/or anchors at which such non-compliance has occurred.

10.2 Immediate Termination

Pole attachment license(s), authorization and/or rights are automatically and immediately terminated by the Licensor if:

- (a) except in circumstances in which Licensor has accepted evidence of self-insurance in accordance with Article XIV, the Licensee's insurance carrier shall at any time notify the Licensor that the policy or policies of insurance as required in Article XIV will be or have been cancelled or amended so that those requirements will no longer be satisfied;
- (b) the Licensee shall fail to pay any sum due under Article III or to deposit any sum required under this Agreement, or shall fail to maintain satisfactory surety as required in Article XII;
- (c) any authorization that may be required by any governmental or private authority for the construction, operation and maintenance of the Licensee's facilities on a pole or anchor is denied, revoked or cancelled.

10.3 General

10.3.1 In the event of termination of any of the Licensee's licenses, authorization and/or rights hereunder, the Licensee shall remove its facilities from the poles and anchors within sixty (60) days of the effective date of the termination; provided, however, that Licensee shall be liable for and pay all fees and charges pursuant to provisions of this Agreement to the Licensor until Licensee's facilities are actually removed from the utility pole(s) and anchor(s). If the Licensee fails to remove its facilities within

the specified period, the Licensor shall have the right to remove such facilities at the Licensee's expense and without liability on the part of the Licensor for damage or injury to such facilities or interruption of Licensee services.

- 10.3.2 When Licensee's facilities are removed from a pole or anchor, no attachment to the same pole or anchor shall be made until the Licensee has first complied with all of the provisions of this Agreement as though no such pole or anchor attachment had been made previously and all outstanding charges due to the Licensor for such pole or anchor have been paid in full.
- 10.3.3 Any license issued under this Agreement shall automatically terminate when Licensee ceases to have authority to construct, operate and/or maintain its attachments on the public or private property at the location of the particular pole covered by the license. Such automatic termination shall be stayed if the Licensee has sought judicial or regulatory review of the decision that: (1) has acted to terminate such authority or (2) has declared that the Licensee lacks such authority.

10.4 <u>Licensee's Removal of Attachments</u>

- 10.4.1 Licensee may at any time remove its attachments from a pole or anchor after first giving Licensor written notice of such removal. Licensee shall complete and provide to Licensor the Notification of Discontinuance of Use of Poles as contained in APPENDIX IV hereto. Licensor shall verify and execute such form within thirty (30) days of submission. Billing for the attachment shall cease as of the last day of the month in which verification occurs. Licensor may update this form from time to time during the term of this Agreement.
- 10.4.2 Following such removal, no attachment shall again be made to such pole until Licensee shall have complied first with all of the provisions of this Agreement as though no such attachment had been made previously.

ARTICLE XI - ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS

11.1 Licensee shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any authorization granted hereunder, and this Agreement shall not inure to the benefit of Licensee's affiliates, successors or assigns without the prior written consent of Licensor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, no consent of Licensor is required if the Licensee assigns or transfers this Agreement to an affiliate and notifies the Licensor of such assignment or transfer, including any change in the notice address to be provided in accordance with subpart 15.3.

- In the event such consent or consents are granted by Licensor, then this Agreement shall extend to and bind the affiliates, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.
- Pole space licensed to Licensee hereunder is for the use of the Licensee named in this Agreement only, and Licensee shall not lease, sublicense, share with, convey or resell to any affiliates, subsidiaries, or any others any such space or rights granted hereunder.

ARTICLE XII - SURETY REQUIREMENTS

- 12.1 Upon request of Licensor, a new Licensee, or an existing Licensee that lacks a history of prompt payments shall furnish bond or other satisfactory evidence of financial security in an amount specified as follows in subpart 12.2 to guarantee the payment of any sums which may become due to the Licensor for Attachment Fees due hereunder and any other charges for work performed for Licensee by the Licensor, including the removal of Licensee's facility upon termination of any authorization issued hereunder.
- Licensee shall furnish a bond or other security satisfactory to the Licensor in the following amounts: Security in the amount of \$20.00 shall be required for each authorized pole attachment. The total amount of security required hereunder shall not exceed \$300,000 or be less than \$1,000. Security will not be required where Licensee's total attachment authorizations do not exceed ten (10).
- 12.3 If the financial security is in the form of a bond or irrevocable Letter of Credit, such instrument shall be issued by a surety company or bank satisfactory to the Licensor. The instrument shall contain a provision that the surety company or bank will pay Licensor, within the dollar limits of the instrument, any sum demanded by the Licensor as due under the Agreement, whether or not the Licensee contests its liability to pay such sum, and whether or not the Licensor exercises or has exercised any option it may have to terminate. If any such amounts are paid by the surety company or bank, the Licensee shall restore the surety bond or Letter of Credit to the full amount required under this Article, within thirty (30) days after notice of such payment is sent to the Licensee.
- 12.4 The amount of the bond or the financial security shall not operate as a limitation upon the obligations of the Licensee.

ARTICLE XIII - LIABILITY AND DAMAGES

13.1 Licensor reserves to itself, its successors and assigns, the right to locate and maintain its poles and to operate its facilities in conjunction therewith in such a

manner as will best enable it to fulfill its own service requirements. Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee for any interruption of Licensee's service or for interference with the operation of Licensee's communications services arising in any manner, except from Licensor's sole negligence, out of the use of Licensor's poles.

- 13.2 Licensee shall exercise precaution to avoid damaging the facilities of Licensor and of others attached to Licensor's poles, and Licensee assumes all responsibility for any and all loss from such damage caused by Licensee's employees, agents or contractors. Licensee shall make an immediate report to Licensor and any other user of the occurrence of any such damage and agrees to reimburse the respective parties for all costs incurred in making repairs.
- 13.3 Licensor shall exercise precaution to avoid damaging the facilities of Licensee.

 Licensor shall make an immediate report to Licensee of the occurrence of any such damage and agrees to reimburse the respective parties for reasonable, direct costs incurred in making repairs.
- 13.4 Except to the extent as may be caused by the negligence of Licensor, Licensee shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Licensor against and from any and all liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses arising from or in connection with this Agreement (including reasonable attorneys' fees) including, but not limited to, those which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Licensor, by reason of:
 - any work or action done upon the poles licensed hereunder or any part thereof performed by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (b) any use, occupation, condition, operation of said poles or any part thereof by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (c) any act or omission on the part of Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees, for which Licensor may be found liable;
 - (d) any accident, injury (including death) or damage to any person or property occurring upon said poles or any part thereof arising out of any use thereof by Licensee or any if its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
 - (e) any failure on the part of Licensee to perform or comply with any of the covenants, agreements, terms or conditions contained in this Agreement;

- (f) payments made under any Workers' Compensation Law or under any plan for employees disability and death benefits arising out of any use of the poles by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees;
- (g) the erection, maintenance, presence, use, occupancy or removal of Licensee's Facilities by Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, servants, or employees or by their proximity to the facilities of other parties attached to Licensor's poles; provided that Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless Licensor against and from any and all such liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses brought, made or asserted by any of Licensee's agents, contractors, servants, or employees of any of Licensee's contractors or agents; or by
- (h) any and all such liabilities, claims, suits, fines, penalties, damages, losses, fees, costs and expenses brought, made or asserted by any of Licensee's agents, contractors, servants, or employees of any of Licensee's contractors or agents.
- 13.5 Licensee shall indemnify, save harmless and defend Licensor from any and all claims and demands of whatever kind which arise directly or indirectly from the operation of Licensee's attachments, including taxes, special charges by others, claims and demands for damages or loss for infringement of copyright, for libel and slander, for unauthorized use of television broadcast programs, and for unauthorized use of other program material, and from and against all claims and demands for infringement of patents with respect to the manufacture, use and operation of Licensee's poles, or otherwise.

The provisions of this Article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement or any license issued thereunder.

ARTICLE XIV - INSURANCE

- 14.1 Licensee and its subcontractors (if any) agree to purchase and maintain during the term hereof all insurance and/or bonds required by law or this Agreement including without limitation:
 - (a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (including, but not limited to, premises-operations, explosion and collapse, underground hazard, broad form property damage, products/completed operations, contractual liability, independent contractors, personal injury) with limits of at least \$2,000,000. combined single limit for each occurrence. (Limits may be satisfied with primary and/or excess coverage.)

- (b) Commercial Automobile Liability with limits of at least \$2,000,000. combined single limit for each occurrence.
- (c) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by Statute, and Employer's Liability insurance with limits of not less than \$1,000,000. per occurrence.
- 14.2 All insurance must be in effect before Licensor will authorize Licensee to make attachment to Licensor's pole(s) and shall remain in force until such Attachments have been removed from all such poles.
- 14.3 Licensee shall annually submit to Licensor satisfactory evidence of such insurance by an ACORD Form or other satisfactory form in general use by the insurance industry for each company insuring Licensee to the effect that it has insured Licensee for all liabilities of Licensee covered by this Agreement; and that such certificates will name the Licensor as an additional insured under the public liability policy and that it will not cancel or change any such policy of insurance issued to Licensee except after giving of not less than sixty (60) days written notice to Licensor. In the case of a self-insured Licensee, Licensor may elect to accept satisfactory evidence of such self-insurance in lieu of the ACORD Form.

ARTICLE XV.- GENERAL PROVISIONS

15.1 Authorization Not Exclusive

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a grant of any exclusive authorization, right or privilege to Licensee. Licensor shall have the right to grant, renew and extend rights and privileges to others not parties to this Agreement, by contract or otherwise, to use any pole covered by this Agreement.

15.2 Failure to Enforce

Failure of Licensor to enforce or insist upon compliance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement or to give notice or declare this Agreement or any authorization granted hereunder terminated shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment of any term or condition of this Agreement, but the same shall be and remain at all times in full force and effect.

15.3 Notices

APPENDIX II sets forth where written notices required under this agreement shall be sent to Licensor and Licensee. Notice shall be acceptable in the following forms: first class mail, or if time-sensitive, facsimile followed by first

class mail or overnight mail with receipt. Licensee shall complete APPENDIX II and submit it to Licensor with this Agreement.

15.4 Severability

If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the entire Agreement, but rather the entire Agreement shall be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions. If the invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions shall be considered an essential element of this Agreement, the parties shall promptly attempt to negotiate a substitute therefor.

15.5 Choice of Law

The construction, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State or Commonwealth where the Licensor's poles are located, as set forth in this Agreement, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law. All actions under this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent subject-matter jurisdiction of the county of the capital of such State or Commonwealth or a regulatory agency with subject-matter jurisdiction, and both parties agree to accept and submit to the personal jurisdiction of such court or regulatory agency. Licensee also agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of any court in the United States wherein an action is commenced against Licensor based on a claim for which Licensee has indemnified Licensor hereunder.

15.6 Compliance with Laws

The parties hereto shall at all times observe and comply with, and the provisions of this Agreement are subject to, all laws, ordinances, and regulations which in any manner affect the rights and obligations of the parties hereto under this Agreement, so long as such laws, ordinances, or regulations remain in effect.

Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Licensor for, from and against and defend Licensor against, any loss or damage sustained because of Licensee's noncompliance hereunder.

15.7 Survival

All rights and obligations hereunder granted or incurred prior to and which by their nature would continue beyond the cancellation, termination, or expiration of this Agreement shall survive such cancellation, termination, or expiration.

15.8 Use of Information

Licensee may provide to Licensor license applications and business plans of its future needs for pole attachments. Such information will allow Licensor to better forecast personnel and equipment requirements. However, as to business plans, such information shall be deemed for use as advance planning purposes only, and no obligation shall be created that Licensor hire personnel or purchase equipment, or Licensee submit license applications for the pole attachments. Such information shall be used only by such employees or contractors of Licensor who have responsibilities relating to the administration of, or to work to be performed under, this Agreement and said employees shall treat such information as Licensor treats its own confidential information of similar type and value. Licensor's obligations hereunder shall not extend to any information that are now available to the public or become available by reason of acts or omissions not attributable to Licensor.

15.9 Access to Records

Licensor, upon receipt of written request, shall provide access to Licensor's pole records in accordance with "Job Aid For Requests To Records" attached hereto as APPENDIX VIII. Licensor may update this form from time to time during the term of this Agreement.

15.10 Dispute Resolution

In the case where Licensee claims that a term or condition is unjust or unreasonable, Licensee shall submit a complaint to the Manager-License Administration Group, specifying all information and its argument relied on to justify its claim. Licensor shall provide a written response to such complaint within 10 business days after receipt of the complaint. Such response shall specifically address all contentions made by Licensee. If Licensee continues to have issues, it may request a meeting with Manager-License Administration Group to discuss such issues. Such meeting shall be held within five (5) business days. If the Licensee is not satisfied with the results of such meeting, it may file a complaint with the regulatory body of competent jurisdiction.

15.11 Emergency Conditions

All parties shall work cooperatively in the case of an emergency to restore service to their respective customers.

ARTICLE XVI – TERM OF AGREEMENT

Except as provided below, this Agreement shall remain in effect; provided, however, that the Licensor may, no less than two years from this date and upon written notice, require the Licensee to engage in good-faith negotiations with the Licensor to amend the Agreement to comport with regulatory changes or obligations, If, the parties cannot agree to an amendment, they shall submit the matter to the regulatory agency with jurisdiction to resolve the matter. The Agreement may be terminated by Licensee by written notice of termination no less than 30 days prior to the effective date of such termination; provided, however, that such early termination shall not become effective until the Licensee has discontinued all existing licenses and has removed any and all facilities. The Agreement may be terminated upon written notice by the Licensor if, within one year from this date, the Licensee has placed no facilities on the Licensor's poles in accordance with the Agreement.

Upon execution, this Agreement cancels and supercedes all previously executed Agreements between the parties. Upon execution, this Agreement cancels and supercedes all previously executed Agreements between MediaOne of New England, Inc., Concord Electric Company (now known as Unitil Energy Systems, Inc.) and Verizon New England Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in multiple originals on the day and year first above written.

By:	
(Print Name) Susan Dyer Mercer	
(Title) for Director Outside Plant Engineering	
(Date) 7/4/(0)	
Licensor: UNITIL ENERGY SYSTEMS, INC.	
By: York A. Consen (Print Name) SIBERT A. Conson	
(Title)	
(Date)	
Licensee: COMCAST OF MAINE/NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.	
Ву: 7С Ж	
(Print Name) Kosir M. Casay (Title) SVI New England	
(Date)	25

Licensor: VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC.

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC.